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Percent
(in millions, except per share amounts) 01 02 Change

Revenue $ 3,993 3,847 (4)%

EBITDA 1
1,072 990 (8)

Operating income 632 603 (5)

Net income 166 198 19

Net income per share—diluted .45 .53 18

Cash earnings per share 2
1.03 1.08 5

1 Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expense and non-cash items.
2 Net income, adjusted for the effect of dilutive convertible securities, plus depreciation and amortization 

less maintenance capital  expenditures, divided by diluted shares outstanding. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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About the cover: One of the world’s most 
spectacular resorts, the Hilton Waikoloa Village 
is a tropical paradise that stands as a jewel in 
the crown in Hilton’s collection of world-class 
hotel properties. The 1,240-room resort, on
Hawaii’s Big Island, features water sports, golf, 
lush landscaping, waterfalls and extensive 
meeting space.
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Focusing on the fundamentals.

Blocking and tackling. Attention

to the basics. These phrases all

mean pretty much the same

thing. Taken together, they tell

the story of Hilton Hotels

Corporation for 2002.We think

of it as “minding our business.” 

In 2002, a challenging year 

economically for our country

and our industry, this focus 

on the fundamentals of our 

business enabled us to outper-

form most of our competitors 

in revenue-per-available-room

growth in the markets where 

we own hotels; once again post

the strongest margins in our

industry; add 143 properties to

our system; increase market

share for each of our brands;

enhance our timeshare business

through sales of existing units

and development of exciting

new projects; reduce our debt; 

and deliver solid earnings. This

focus on the basics contributed

to our company’s stock price

increasing 16 percent in a year in

which our industry competitors

and the broader market showed

significant declines.

The lodging industry, as we

anticipated, showed steady

improvement during the course

of 2002 as travelers (especially

leisure customers) took to the

road in increasing numbers.

Frankly, however, the improve-

ment was not as dramatic as 

we had originally thought.

Independent business travelers

did not return at the levels we

had expected early in the year.

The return of this important

business segment to full

strengthwill be a catalyst for our

company – and our industry – 

in the years ahead.

OWNED HOTELS: 

Occupancy Gains,Solid Margins

Challenges remain, but these

should not detract from the very

real recovery experienced by 

the hotel business in 2002.

Consider this: occupancy across

comparable owned hotels in the

Hilton system in 2002 was a very

solid 71 percent. These strong

occupancy levels were achieved

in many markets at the expense 

of room rates, but our operating

strategy in a difficult environ-

ment of filling rooms at the best

possible rates proved to be the

right approach.

As a result of these occupancy

gains, coupled with easy 

comparisons late in the year,

revenue-per-available-room

growth at our comparable owned

hotels improved steadily and

sequentially in each quarter 

of 2002. 

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

AT HILTON, “MINDING OUR BUSINESS” 
IS ABOUT TENDING TO THE SPECIFIC NEEDS 
OF OUR FOUR PRIMARY CONSTITUENCIES: 
OUR CUSTOMERS, SHAREHOLDERS, HOTEL 
OWNERS, AND TEAM MEMBERS.



FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

BY PROVIDING THE BEST

SERVICE, VALUE AND

AMENITIES, ALONG WITH

A WIDE VARIETY OF

HOTEL PRODUCTS AND

PRICE POINTS, WE ARE

FOCUSED ON OUR MISSION

OF BEING THE FIRST

CHOICE OF THE WORLD’S

TRAVELERS.

We were very encouraged by 

the recovery in several of our 

most important markets, 

including New York (which was

exceptionally strong during the

year), Washington, D.C. and

Chicago. Hawaii continued to

feel the effects of a downturn 

in travel from Japan, though 

robust visitation from the U.S.

mainland helped keep occupancy

levels strong. The San Francisco/

San Jose and Phoenix markets 

were soft as a result of demand

pressure and the introduction 

of new full-service supply. 

We are happy to note, however, 

that in most of our key markets

there continues to be little 

new full-service supply coming 

on line.New supply in the industry

overall is declining steadily, 

and what is being introduced 

is generally in the mid-scale 

segment of the industry where 

we do not own many properties.

This favorable supply situation 

was a positive for our owned 

hotels in 2002 and bodes well 

for the coming years.

2 HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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A tough room rate growth 

environment, and increased

costs in healthcare and 

insurance, made cost controls

especially important in 2002. 

In a service industry, however,

balance between cost manage-

ment and customer service 

is the key.It’s a balance we have

maintained very well.

Costs taken out at the property

level primarily involved items

invisible to the customer,

efficient deployment of staff

(without resorting to significant

workforce reductions) and 

technology advancements.

This enabled us to once again

come through with margins 

that significantly exceeded 

those of our competitors.

Along with managing costs, 

we made prudent and strategic

investments in maintaining 

and improving our properties.

We kept our hotels in optimal

physical condition, completed

comprehensive renovations 

at our hotels in San Francisco

and New Orleans and opened 

a new 327-room tower at the

Hilton Portland. We also

strengthened our leadership

position in Hawaii by purchasing

the 87 percent interest that we

did not previously own of the

1,240-room Hilton Waikoloa

Village on Hawaii’s Big Island. 

FRANCHISING AND 

BRAND DEVELOPMENT: 

Market Share Gains, 

Unit Growth

“Minding our business” – 

starting with the fundamental

goal of serving our guests well –

also enabled us to continue

growing our franchising and

brand development business. 

It is a fact of this business that

energetic and dedicated em-

ployees result in happy guests; 

guest satisfaction brings

increased market share, which 

in turn results in enthusiastic

owners who are more inclined 

to put one of our brand names 

on their hotels.

Guest satisfaction continued 

to be a hallmark of our brands 

in 2002. Embassy Suites Hotels

and Hilton Garden Inn both

earned first place J.D. Power

Awards for customer satisfaction

in their respective categories …

Embassy Suites Hotels for the

fourth consecutive year, and

Hilton Garden Inn in only its

second year of eligibility.

Every one of our brands increased

its market share (as measured 

by RevPAR index) during 2002.

Hilton, Hampton, Embassy Suites

Hotels, Homewood Suites by

Hilton and Hilton Garden Inn all 

U.S. Lodging Supply Growth
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FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS

BY TAKING CARE OF OUR CUSTOMERS, 

MAXIMIZING OUR GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES 

IN EACH OF OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS, 

AND EFFECTIVELY MANAGING OUR COSTS, 

WE REMAIN DEDICATED TO ENHANCING 

SHAREHOLDER VALUE.

continue to earn more than their

fair share of RevPAR against 

their respective competitors in 

a given market.

We are also very pleased with the

ongoing progress being made 

at Doubletree, which has steadily

increased its market share since

we acquired the brand three

years ago. 

The ability to cross-sell among

the entire Hilton family of

brands helps ensure that we keep

business within our system when

Market Share Gains
PT 

2001 2002 CHANGE

Hilton 107.2 109.8 +2.6

Hampton 114.6 118.4 +3.8

Embassy Suites 121.5 124.2 +2.7

Hotels

Homewood Suites 114.0 118.1 +4.1

by Hilton

Hilton Garden Inn 104.5 108.1 +3.6

Doubletree 98.8 98.9 +0.1

Source: Smith Travel Research

A RevPAR index of 100 represents “fair share” vs. 
the competitive set.
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a customer’s first choice 

is not available. Cross-selling 

accounted for more than $300

million in incremental system-

wide booked revenue in 2002,

and illustrates the advantage 

of offering customers the widest

possible range of hotel products,

price points and locations.

Additionally, Hilton HHonors

continues to be one of the 

industry’s most powerful loyalty 

programs. The benefits of these 

programs, and the resulting 

market share gains, enable us 

to add a significant number 

of hotels to our system without

using our own capital. Virtually

all new hotel development in 

the U.S., as we have noted, is in

the mid-scale segment of the

industry, where we prefer to 

be a franchisor rather than an

owner. The mid-scale Hampton

and Hilton Garden Inn brands

account for the majority of our

unit growth.

New management contracts –

including a new convention

hotel in Omaha, Nebraska and 

a spectacular beach and golf

resort in Los Cabos, Mexico –

are also part of our brand 

development story. Additionally,

with our brands firmly estab-

lished as the brands-of-choice

for owners, we anticipate new 

opportunities for brand conver-

sions. In 2002, we converted 26

hotels to one of our own brands.

TIMESHARE: 

Solid Sales, New Development

In 2002, “minding our 

business” in timeshare meant

focusing on a select number 

of projects in strategic markets,

building sales and making 

prudent investments in new

development. We saw continued

solid sales across our timeshare

business in 2002, most notably

at our Hilton Hawaiian Village

development where the average

unit sales price has increased

steadily since we opened that

project in early 2001.

In the spring of 2002, we

resumed development of two 

2003 Projected Unit Growth1 by Brand
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exciting new timeshare projects: 

in Las Vegas, where we are the 

leader in the vacation ownership

business, and in Orlando, the

world’s largest timeshare market.  

Our most interesting new 

timeshare development is the

introduction of an “urban 

timeshare” concept called

“Hilton Club.” At the end of

2002 we opened the first Hilton

Club project on two floors of 

the Hilton New York in midtown

Manhattan. Customer reaction

has been extremely positive, 

and it is our expectation that 

this exciting new concept in

vacation ownership will be a 

real winner.

CORPORATE FINANCE: 

Continued Debt Reduction

As always, “minding our 

business” for our shareholders

included effective and prudent

corporate finance activities.

Debt reduction, a priority for 

the last three years, continued 

to be realized along with capital

market executions to maintain a 

manageable maturities schedule 

and a preferred balance between

fixed and floating rate debt. 

2002 SUMMARY

Last year was a difficult one 

to be sure. In an environment

such as this, the strong – those 

with the best business models,

strategies, assets, brands, 

technology, and the people and

focus to make it all happen – 

get stronger. That’s our takeaway

from 2002. We did more than

“make it through”…we got 

even stronger.

The credit, of course, goes to 

the best people in the business…

our team members. This re-

markable groupof professionals

is dedicated, talented and 

enthusiastic, with an overriding

commitment to delivering 

quality, embracing diversity and

giving back to their communities.

They bring the best of Hilton 

to their jobs every single day…

they set Hilton and our family 

of brands apart from the rest …

they make the difference.

2003 OUTLOOK: 

Technology Advantage

As we look at 2003, we antici-

pate facing many of the same

challenges we encountered last

year. Increased healthcare and

insurance costs will be factors

again in 2003. The economy

remains fragile and the pace of

recovery will have an impact 

on how quickly and dramatically 

$ 6.0

5.5

5.0

4.5

4.0

3.5

99 00 01 02

Total Debt 1

(in billions)

5.5$ 5.1 4.7 4.2

1 Net of debt assumed by Park Place Entertainment
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independent business travel

returns. Uncertainty in the world

political situation presents yet

another challenge. 

As a strategically complete company,

however, we have what we need 

to continue succeeding in what we

expect will be a difficult year. 

One area where we have a distinct

advantage is in the creation and

implementation of new technology

to operate the business even more

efficiently and maximize customer

service and loyalty. This, in our

view, is something that will even

further separate the haves and

have-nots in our industry.

By the end of 2003, we will have 

in place a common technology 

platform linking together all 

of our brands, and virtually all 

of our 2,100 hotels, through 

the same system and the same 

software. We call it “OnQ.” What

this means is that when a frequent

guest walks into one of our hotels 

(a Hilton Garden Inn for example),

we can talk to that guest about his

FOR OUR OWNERS

BY OFFERING THE INDUSTRY’S MOST POWERFUL

COLLECTION OF BRANDS AND THE TOOLS

NECESSARY TO CONTINUE SHOWING STRONG

MARKET SHARE PERFORMANCE, WE ARE 

COMMITTED TO SEEING OUR HOTEL OWNERS 

MAXIMIZE THEIR INVESTMENTS WITH US.



or her last stay at a Hampton 

or Embassy Suites hotel; report

that the guest’s special room

requirements and amenities

have been taken care of, and see

that his or her reservation next

week at the Homewood Suites,

Hilton or Doubletree down the

road or in another city is all set. 

In short, technology is helping

enable our team members to

bring customer service to a new

and even better level. 

This common platform will 

be used also to enhance the 

efficiency and productivity of 

back of the house operations,

such as forecasting for revenue

maximization purposes.

None of our competitors have

this capability, and with tech-

nology advancements taking on

increased importance in the 

years ahead, it gives us a real 

leg up on our competition.

Beyond technology, we will 

continue our focus on making 

FOR OUR TEAM MEMBERS

BY PROVIDING GROWTH 

OPPORTUNITIES, POSITIVE AND

PRODUCTIVE PLACES IN WHICH

TO WORK, AND A COMMITMENT 

TO DIVERSITY AND COMMUNITY

SERVICE, WE STRIVE TO BUILD

ON OUR REPUTATION AS AN

EMPLOYER-OF-CHOICE IN THE 

HOTEL INDUSTRY.   

8 HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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effective use of the advantages

inherent in our company and

business model:

• Ownership and control of key

hotel assets in important high-

barrier-to-entry markets, cities

that will see little or no new 

full-service supply in the near

future. As the business rebounds

in the years ahead, the avail-

ability of first-class hotel rooms

will be in short supply.

• A family of brands commanding

occupancy and rate premiums,

which will solidify them as 

the brands-of-choice for hotel

owners, thereby enabling us 

to continue adding units to 

our system.

• Strategic development of our 

timeshare business, where we 

are focused on completing our

exciting new projects and 

continuing our sales success.

• A proven track record of 

effective cost management, 

a priority that continues 

in 2003.

• Our alliance with Hilton

International, which 

continues to bring benefits 

to our millions of customers

throughout the world.

• Team members that are the 

best in the business, dedicated

to delivering on these promises

for the benefit of our guests,

shareholders, hotel owners 

and franchisees.

Our longer-term view of the

lodging business remains posi-

tive, but our outlook for 2003

is tempered by the challenges

faced by the entire travel and

tourism industry. We are confi-

dent, however, that through our

attention to the fundamentals 

of our business, we have built 

the framework that will enhance

our industry leadership position.

On behalf of our Board of

Directors and 74,000 team

members, we acknowledge and

appreciate the support of 

our shareholders and join you 

in looking forward to an even

brighter future.

Sincerely,

BARRON HILTON 

Chairman of the Board

STEPHEN F. BOLLENBACH

President and Chief Executive Officer

March 14, 2003
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The Hilton brand encompasses 231 domestic

hotels with more than 87,000 rooms.

Since year-end 1999, the brand’s RevPAR

index has risen from approximately 103

to 110.

Two new Hilton convention center hotels 

are slated to open in the coming months: 

the 1,200-room Hilton Americas in

Houston, Texas, and the 800-room Hilton

Austin, in Austin, Texas.

With a collection of hotels that range

from city-center convention properties

to destination resorts and airport 

hotels, the Hilton name continues to be

synonomous with “hotel,” serving the

needs of business and leisure travelers

alike. Continuing to provide our guests

the kind of service and amenities they

have come to expect from Hilton is key 

to maintaining occupancy and rate 

premiums and achieving growth through

management and franchise contracts.

There are more than 150 Doubletree hotels

throughout the United States, Canada,

Mexico and Latin America.

At year-end 2002, there were 10 new

Doubletree hotels either in design or under

construction.

Five hotels were converted to the Doubletree

brand in 2002 either from independent

hotels or from other brand names.

At Doubletree, “service” is more 

than just giving our guests a quick 

and efficient check-in and a clean 

room. By dedicating ourselves to 

our customers from the moment they

decide to travel until they leave our

hotels, we are able to provide out-

standing and uncompromising levels 

of service. An unwavering commitment 

to exceeding guest expectations – 

every guest, every time – is a hallmark 

of the Doubletree brand.

HILTON DOUBLETREE

Hilton El Conquistador
Tucson, Arizona

Doubletree Hotel, 
San Diego-Mission Valley, California
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Embassy Suites Hotels earned first-place

“Guest Satisfaction” recognition from 

J.D. Power for the fourth consecutive year.

In 2002, new Embassy Suites Hotels 

opened in Kentucky, California and

Colorado, as well as in the Dominican

Republic and Canada.

The Embassy Suites Hotel in New York City,

located in Battery Park and closed since 

the September 11, 2001 attacks, re-opened 

in May 2002.

A strong value proposition, including 

spacious two-room suites,compli-

mentary cooked-to-order breakfast,

evening manager’s reception and soaring

atrium lobbies, enables Embassy Suites

Hotels to maintain a powerful competitive

advantage. Reinforcing its reputation 

as an innovator, Embassy Suites Hotels 

in 2002 introduced the first of three 

test “Creativity Suites” designed to stimu-

late creativity among business travelers.

Embassy Suites Hotels continues to build

on its leadership position in both the 

all-suites and upscale full-service 

segments of the industry.

There are more than 1,200 Hampton Inn

hotels throughout the United States, with

owners expected to open another 50 in 2003.

Along with its suburban and roadside base,

Hampton Inns are currently being developed

in New York City. A total of five will open 

there by year-end 2004.

Ground was broken in 2002 on the new

Hampton Inn prototype for smaller markets.

The brand’s highly successful Save-a-

Landmark campaign has received more than 

$3 million worth of publicity since 2000.

Hampton continues to enhance its lead-

ership position in the mid-scale hotel

market with outstanding performance

and an enviable ability to build market

share. This track record of performance

makes the Hampton brand extremely

popular with hotel owners. For our

guests, Hampton is solidly positioned in

the marketplace, offers an outstanding

product with great service and under-

stands what matters to our customers.

EMBASSY SUITES HOTELS HAMPTON

Embassy Suites Hotel
Sacramento-Riverfront Promenade, California 

Hampton Inn & Suites, 
Charlotte at Concord Mills/Speedway Boulevard,
North Carolina 
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The pipeline of new Homewood Suites by

Hilton hotels includes 43 properties under

construction or in design.

In addition to suburban markets, the 

brand has developed a presence in such

urban locations as Chicago, Los Angeles,

San Francisco and Miami.  

In 2002, Homewood Suites by Hilton opened

its first international property, in Mont-

Tremblant, Quebec, Canada.

By maintaining its focus on providing 

the highest quality product and service

levels in the extended-stay segment,

Homewood Suites by Hilton continues 

to achieve impressive market share

gains. This enhances its position as 

a leading brand-of-choice for hotel

owners and travelers alike. The brand’s

new “My Homewood” ad campaign 

positions Homewood as the product 

best designed to meet the needs of

today’s extended-stay traveler.   

Hilton Garden Inn, in only its second 

year of eligibility, earned a first-place 

J.D. Power award for highest guest satis-

faction in its category.

The 150th Hilton Garden Inn hotel opened 

in 2002, in Arlington, Virginia.

Thirty-six new Hilton Garden Inn properties

opened in 2002, including the brand’s first

conversion property in Phoenix, Arizona.

With more than 160 hotels across 

North America, and more openings

planned for 2003, the Hilton Garden 

Inn brand is positioned as a leading 

mid-priced lodging choice for today’s

growing population of mid-market 

travelers. By focusing on the amenities

and service levels our guests have 

said they need and want most, Hilton

Garden Inn offers the quality and value

associated with the Hilton name, 

but in a mid-scale product.

HOMEWOOD SUITES BY HILTON HILTON GARDEN INN

Homewood Suites by Hilton
Atlanta-Alpharetta, Georgia 

Hilton Garden Inn Arlington/Courthouse 
Arlington, Virginia
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The world-renowned Mount Juliet Resort 

in Ireland was added to the Conrad portfolio

in 2002.

During the year, 25 awards from consumers

and hotel industry experts were bestowed 

on the Conrad brand or individual 

Conrad hotels.

ConradHotels.com, the brand’s new website,

was successfully created and launched.

Since 1985, when the first Conrad 

Hotel opened in Australia, this luxury

brand has set high standards in service

and accommodations worldwide in 

such locales as London, Hong Kong 

and Singapore. The brand’s growth 

going forward will be through securing 

management contracts and conversion

opportunities in city centers and 

resort locations in both domestic and

international locations. 

HILTON GRAND VACATIONS COMPANY CONRAD HOTELS 

New Hilton Grand Vacations resorts are

under development in Las Vegas, Nevada

and Orlando, Florida.

In 2002, Hilton Grand Vacations introduced

a new urban timeshare concept at the Hilton

New York in midtown Manhattan.

Average unit sales prices continue to increase

throughout the HGVC system.

With superb locations, spacious 

accommodations and distinctive guest

amenities, Hilton Grand Vacations Club

membership now stands at more than

56,000 families. Selective expansion 

in attractive markets and innovative

product development characterize our

strategy for enhancing our timeshare

business. The new Hilton Club – located

on two floors of the Hilton New York –

offers members a metropolitan location

along with high-end services and exclu-

sive travel privileges.

Conrad Mount Juliet
Ireland

The Hilton Club - New York
New York City
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COMMUNITY

1

2

3 4

1 Memphis team members rolled 

up their sleeves and got involved in 

a city-wide clean up day at the annual 

Hands On Memphis Servathon (an 

affiliate of City Cares of America). 

2 During Cancer Awareness Month in

Memphis, the men of Hilton “aproned up”

and competed in a Souper Men Cooking

Challenge. All proceeds from the event

went to the American Cancer Society 

earmarked for prostate cancer research.  

3 President & CEO Steve Bollenbach 

and Los Angeles Unified School District

Board of Education member Mike Lansing

dedicate the Hilton-sponsored library 

renovation at Samuel Gompers Middle

School in South Central Los Angeles.

4 Team members from Hilton’s world 

headquarters in Beverly Hills volunteer 

to help build houses at the Habitat 

for Humanity development in Pacoima,

California.

Our 74,000 employees make up the finest team in our industry. 

Their dedication and commitment to service continues to strengthen

our reputation as a company of choice for travelers, team members,

owners and business partners. We are proud, too, that our team 

members show that same level of dedication and commitment to 

their communities by giving unselfishly of their time and energy to

hundreds of local charitable causes and events. They exemplify 

what Hilton spirit is all about.
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Our financial goal is to maximize
long-term shareholder value by:

• Maximizing earnings and cash

flow from operations.

• Allocating capital to our existing

businesses and new opportunities

that provide superior risk-

adjusted returns.

• Clearly communicating to our 

owners, partners, shareholders 

and team members the strategies 

we employ as a company.

2002 RESULTS

A slower-than-expected im-
provement in the U.S. economy, 
uncertainty in the world political 
situation and increased costs 
in such areas as healthcare and
insurance, combined to adversely
impact our financial results for
fiscal 2002. Independent business
travel continued to be sluggish 
as corporations maintained 
a tight hold on travel budgets.  

We were able, however, to 
achieve the following: strong
occupancy levels at most of our
owned hotels by attracting
increased leisure and group 
business; healthy margins through
effective cost containment, and
strong fee income through the
addition of new franchised hotels
and management contracts.

Revenue for 2002 declined 4 per-
cent to $3.847 billion, and total
EBITDA (earnings before interest,

taxes, depreciation, amortization
and non-cash items) decreased 
8 percent to $990 million. Total
company operating income was
$603 million in 2002, compared
with $632 million in 2001.

Fiscal 2002 net income was 
$198 million, versus $166 million
in 2001. Diluted net income 
per share was $.53 for the year 
compared to $.45 in 2001. 
Pro forma diluted earnings per
share for 2001 (including $.12

per share from new accounting
rules pertaining to non-amortiza-
tion of goodwill and certain
intangible assets) was $.57.

RevPAR (revenue per available
room) at our comparable U.S.
owned hotels declined 2.6 percent,
on an occupancy increase of 1.6

points to 71.1 percent and an
average daily rate decline of 
4.8 percent to $148.41. EBITDA 
margins at these properties 
were roughly flat with 2001 at 
30.2 percent. RevPAR at this 
group of hotels showed sequential 
quarterly improvement through
the year. System-wide RevPAR
declined at all brands in 2002

except for Hampton, which
showed a slight increase.

Management and franchise 
fees declined 4 percent from
2001 to $329 million. A total 
of 143 properties with 18,034

rooms were added to the Hilton
system in 2002, in line with 

our expectations. The vast 
majority of these new properties
were added without any Hilton
investment, guarantees, mezza-
nine loans or other support 
vehicles to third party owners. 
At year-end 2002, the Hilton 
system consisted of 2,084 prop-
erties and 337,116 rooms.

TOTAL DEBT

At the end of 2002, Hilton 
had total debt of approximately 
$4.2 billion (net of $325 million 
of debt allocated to Park Place
Entertainment; in 2002, as 
scheduled, Park Place repaid 
$300 million of the original 
$625 million assumed notes.) 
The year-end 2002 debt total 
represents a reduction of 
approximately $455 million 
from the year-end 2001 total.
Since year-end 1999, the 
company has reduced its debt 
balance by $1.25 billion. The 
company maintains a goal of
achieving a debt-to-EBITDA 
ratio of 3.75 times, which we
believe is an important criteria 
for obtaining a solid investment
grade credit rating. As a result 
of the EBITDA decline in 2002, 
the company ended the year 
with a debt-to-EBITDA ratio 
of approximately 4.28 times.

In 2002,the company successfully
sold $375 million of 10-year
Senior Unsecured Notes carrying 
a coupon of 7.625 percent;

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
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renewed its $150 million 
364-day revolving credit facility
and voluntarily reduced its 
commitment on its multi-year
facility from $1.4 billion to 
$1.2 billion; and repaid approxi-
mately $268 million of 7.7 percent 
Senior Notes which matured 
in July 2002. At year-end 2002,
approximately 73 percent of the
company’s debt was fixed rate
long-term bond debt with a very
manageable maturity profile.
Hilton’s debt currently has an
average life of 7.1 years, at an
average cost of approximately 
6.4 percent.

At year-end 2002, the company
had approximately $960 million 
of available capacity under its 
various lines of credit.

ASSET DISPOSITIONS/PROPERTY

TRANSACTIONS

During 2002, the company 
successfully completed a number
of asset sales (the proceeds of
which were used to reduce debt)
and property transactions:

• The company sold $119 million 

of timeshare notes receivable 

to a wholly owned subsidiary of

GE Capital. At year-end 2002,

Hilton’s total timeshare receivable

portfolio was approximately 

$96 million.

• Hilton sold the Harrison

Conference Center chain to

Aramark for approximately 

$49 million in cash. Hilton had

obtained Harrison as part of its 

1999 acquisition of Promus, and

did not believe that it fit well with

the company’s “Family of

Brands” strategy.

• The company acquired the 87 per-

cent interest it did not previously

own in the Hilton Waikoloa

Village, a spectacular 1,240-room

resort property on Hawaii’s Big

Island. The total consideration 

of approximately $155 million

(approximately $75 million cash

and 5.2 million shares of Hilton

common stock) represents roughly

40 percent of the resort’s original

development cost.

• Hilton formed its second partner-

ship with CNL Hospitality Corp. 

in which the partnership owns

seven hotels; Hilton operates the

properties under long-term 

management agreements and

retains a minority ownership 

interest in the partnership.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In addition to spending approxi-
mately $180 million on routine
improvements at owned hotels
and technology systems, the 
company in 2002 invested
approximately $50 million on 
a number of special projects,
along with $60 million on new
timeshare development.

Maintaining our owned hotels 
in optimal physical condition,
investing strategically in our
owned properties to maximize 
the value of these assets, and the
prudent development of new

timeshare projects characterized
our capital spending strategy 
in 2002, and will continue to be
our focal points going forward.

For 2003, we expect total capital
spending to be 20 to 25 percent
above the 2002 level. This in-
crease is due primarily to the
development of exciting new
timeshare projects in Las Vegas
and Orlando, and capital 
improvements at the Hilton
Hawaiian Village.

OUTLOOK

In our view, the long-term 
outlook for Hilton is very bright.
We believe that transient business
demand will gradually improve
along with the U.S.economy.The
lack of new-build construction
activity in the urban and resort
markets where we are owners will
eventually translate into higher
rates at these hotels. We continue
to maintain strong margins in 
a difficult environment, so that
when pricing power reappears,
it should result in significant posi-
tive operating leverage. On the
management and franchise side of
our company, the strength of our
brands and effective marketing
programs should lead to steady
growth in income without signifi-
cant use of capital. In the mean-
time, we are focused on maintain-
ing and improving our properties,
selective development of time-
share resorts and using excess
cash flow to reduce our debt.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations

THE COMPANY

We are engaged in the ownership, management and development of hotels, resorts and timeshare properties and 
the franchising of lodging properties. At December 31, 2002, our system contained 2,084 properties totaling over
337,000 rooms worldwide. Our brands include Hilton, Hilton Garden Inn, Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Hampton,
Homewood Suites by Hilton and Conrad. In addition, we develop and operate timeshare resorts through Hilton Grand
Vacations Company and its related entities. We are also engaged in various other activities related or incidental to the
operation of hotels.

The number of properties and rooms at December 31, 2002 by brand and by type are as follows:

Brand Properties Rooms  Type Properties Rooms

Hilton 231 87,710 Owned 63 34,664

Hilton Garden Inn 161 22,097 Leased 7 2,650

Doubletree 154 41,342 Joint Venture 65 19,093

Embassy Suites 169 41,142 135 56,407

Homewood Suites by Hilton 121 13,728 Managed 201 52,004

Hampton 1,206 123,041 Franchised 1,721 225,588

Other 15 4,939 1,922 277,592

Timeshare 27 3,117 Timeshare 27 3,117

Total 2,084 337,116 Total 2,084 337,116
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Our operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar products or services: Hotel
Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Timeshare. The Hotel Ownership segment derives revenue from owned,
majority owned and leased hotel properties and equity earnings from unconsolidated affiliates (primarily hotel joint
ventures). The Managing and Franchising segment provides services including hotel management and licensing of
our family of brands to franchisees. This segment generates its revenue from fees charged to hotel owners. As a
manager of hotels, we are typically responsible for supervising or operating the hotel in exchange for fees based on a
percentage of the hotel's gross revenue, operating profits, cash flow, or a combination thereof. We charge franchise
fees, depending on the brand, of up to five percent of rooms revenue in exchange for the use of one of our brand
names. The Timeshare segment consists of multi-unit timeshare resorts. This segment sells and finances timeshare
intervals and operates timeshare resorts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including 
those related to bad debts, investments and notes receivable, valuation of long-lived assets, intangible assets, 
self-insurance reserves, tax reserves, and contingencies and litigation, on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates
and judgments on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. We believe the following critical accounting policies, among others, affect our more
significant estimates and assumptions used in preparing our consolidated financial statements. Actual results could
differ from our estimates and assumptions.

Notes receivable are reflected net of an estimated allowance for uncollectable amounts. For timeshare notes
receivable, this estimate is based primarily on historical experience and assumptions with respect to future payment
trends. Allowances for uncollectable amounts of other notes receivable, which includes notes from managed,
franchised and unconsolidated joint venture properties, are estimated based primarily on historical trends and
analysis of underlying real estate collateral. Assessment of collateral may include estimates of future cash flow from
the underlying real estate.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. We also maintain cost and equity method
investments in entities that own and operate hotel properties and entities that perform other activities related or
incidental to the operation of hotels. The assessment of long-lived assets for possible impairment requires us to 
make certain judgments, including estimates of real estate values and future cash flow from the respective properties
and investments. We review the recoverability of our long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable.

Our intangible assets include management and franchise contracts, leases, brands and goodwill. The values of 
our management and franchise contracts and leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the life 
of the agreements. The assessment of management and franchise contracts and leases requires us to make certain
judgments, including estimates of future cash flow from the respective properties. Effective January 1, 2002, we
account for brands and goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 142, which
requires that intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for impairment. 
The annual impairment review requires estimates of future cash flow with respect to the brands and estimates of 
the fair value of our company and its components with respect to goodwill.

We are self-insured for various levels of general liability, workers’ compensation and employee medical and dental
insurance coverage. Insurance reserves include the present values of projected settlements for known and incurred,
but not reported claims. Projected settlements are estimated based on historical trends and actuarial data.

We have issued letters of credit and guaranteed certain debt and other obligations of unconsolidated affiliates and 
third parties. Under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to provide additional letters of credit or guarantees.
Assessment of the probability that we will be required to fund under these commitments requires us to make 
estimates of the ability of others to meet their obligations.
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DEVELOPMENT AND CAPITAL SPENDING

Overview

We intend to grow our hotel brands primarily through franchising and the addition of management contracts, which
require little or no capital investment. In addition, we will continue to invest in capital improvements and select
projects at our owned hotels and we may seek to acquire hotel properties on a strategic and selective basis. We will
also continue to invest in the development of timeshare properties.

During 2002, we added 143 properties with approximately 18,000 rooms to our portfolio. A total of 45 properties with
approximately 8,400 rooms were removed from our system in 2002, primarly due to asset sales and the termination 
of our affiliation with the Camino Real chain. In 2003, we expect to add 100 to 115 hotels with 12,000 to 15,000 rooms
to our system, with Hampton and Hilton Garden Inn accounting for most of the new development. Conversions from
outside of our family of brands to one of our brands are expected to account for approximately ten percent of the unit
growth. Virtually all of the growth is expected to be through franchise and management agreements.

Our ability to grow the number of managed and franchised hotels is affected by the factors set forth under 
“Forward-Looking Statements,” including national and regional economic conditions, including the magnitude 
and duration of the current economic downturn in the United States; the effects of actual and threatened terrorist
attacks and international conflicts; credit availability; relationships with franchisees and property owners; and
competition from other hotel brands.

In total, we anticipate spending approximately $355 million on capital expenditures in 2003, which includes 
$165 million for routine improvements and technology, $105 million on timeshare projects, $50 million on special
“return on investment” projects at owned hotels and $35 million at the Hilton Hawaiian Village related to the mold
situation (see “Results of Operations — Fiscal 2002 Compared with Fiscal 2001”). Routine improvements include
expenditures for equipment, fixtures, and wall and floor coverings. Expenditures required to complete our capital
spending programs will be financed through available cash flow and general corporate borrowings.

We will continue to review our owned hotel portfolio for potential repositioning or re-branding opportunities and 
may seek to sell certain assets (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Asset Dispositions”).

Owned Hotels

Capital expenditures during 2002 totaled $245 million, including routine improvements and technology 
expenditures and several major construction and renovation projects at owned, majority owned and leased properties.
Construction projects in 2002 included the 327-room tower addition at the Hilton Portland, which was completed 
in June 2002. Significant renovation projects during the period included an extensive renovation program at the
Hilton New Orleans Riverside. A total of 1,150 guest rooms and suites were completely renovated with new furniture,
fixtures and equipment. The Hilton San Francisco completed a renovation of 568 suites and guest rooms and the
construction of a 44th floor executive lounge in June 2002, while construction of a new two-story health spa
continues, with completion scheduled for the first quarter of 2003. 

In May 2002, we purchased our partner’s interest in the 1,240-room Hilton Waikoloa Village on Hawaii’s Big Island, 
a property we manage and in which we previously had an ownership interest of approximately 13%. We acquired the
remaining 87% interest for approximately $155 million, consisting of $75 million in cash and 5.2 million shares of 
our common stock. The cash portion of the transaction is not included in our aforementioned capital expenditures 
for the year. This property is strategically important to maintaining our strong presence in the Hawaii market, as well
as to the members of the Hilton HHonors guest loyalty program.

Management and Franchise Contracts

Of the total 143 property additions in 2002, 134 were franchise properties, six were managed properties owned by
third parties and two were managed properties in which we own a minority interest. Included in these additions are 
26 properties which, due in part to the market share leadership of our brands and the challenging environment for
many hotel operators, were converted  to our family of brands in 2002. The 26 conversions include nine Hamptons,
six Homewood Suites by Hilton, five Doubletrees, four Hiltons, one Hilton Garden Inn and one Conrad property.



20 HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002

During 2002, our Embassy Suites and Hilton Garden Inn brands earned first place J.D. Power Awards for “Highest
Customer Satisfaction” in their respective categories. Embassy Suites was a winner for a fourth consecutive  year, 
a first in the history of the J.D. Power Award in the lodging category.

In 2002, franchisees announced the development of five new Hampton hotels in New York City, representing the
brand’s first entry into the country’s largest metropolitan area. We also announced an agreement to manage a new 
450-room convention hotel in Omaha, Nebraska. The Hilton Omaha, adjacent to the new Omaha Convention Center, is
scheduled to open in the second quarter of 2004. We were previously selected to manage a new 1,200-room convention
hotel in Houston, Texas and a new 800-room convention hotel in Austin, Texas. The Houston property is scheduled to
open in the fourth quarter of 2003 and the Austin property is scheduled to open in the first quarter of 2004.

Timeshare

In December 2002, we opened our newest timeshare property, the 78-unit Hilton Club – New York, located on two 
floors of the Hilton New York in midtown Manhattan. The total cost of this project was approximately $10 million.
Development continues on two additional properties in Las Vegas, Nevada and Orlando, Florida. The new Las Vegas
project, located at the north end of the Las Vegas Strip, will have 283 units in its first phase, which is scheduled for
completion in November 2003. In Orlando, the new project will have 96 units in its first two phases, with phase one
scheduled for completion in February 2004 and phase two scheduled for completion in May 2004. The total construction
cost for phase one at the new Las Vegas property and phases one and two at the new Orlando property is estimated at 
$165 million, with approximately $95 million estimated to be spent in 2003.

Capital expenditures for our timeshare projects (including the development of the Hilton Club at the Hilton New York)
totaled approximately $56 million in 2002. As the Hilton Club product represents a long-term lease rather than the sale
of a deeded interest in real estate, construction costs totaling $10 million were capitalized as fixed assets. The capital
expenditures associated with our non-lease timeshare products are reflected as inventory until the timeshare intervals
are sold. We also provide financing to the buyers of our timeshare intervals. During 2002, we issued approximately 
$142 million of loans related to timeshare financings, which comprised the majority of our $174 million in additional
investments. Principal collections on timeshare notes during the same period totaled approximately $106 million.
During 2002, we sold approximately $119 million of our timeshare notes receivable to a third party in two separate
transactions (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Asset Dispositions”).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $589 million, $585 million and $675 million for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The increase in 2002 was due primarily to working capital variances,
including the realization of an income tax receivable. The decrease in 2001 compared to 2000 was due to lower levels 
of business at our hotel properties, offset by a reduction in accounts receivable and other working capital variances. 

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $154 million in 2001 and $189 million in 2002. The increase in net cash
used in investing activities was primarily due to the Waikoloa purchase, an increase in additional investments and a
reduction in proceeds from asset dispositions in 2002, partially offset by reduced capital expenditures. The increase 
in additional investments was due primarily to an increase in notes receivable issued to the buyers of our timeshare
intervals, while the decrease in capital expenditures reflects higher levels of spending in 2001 related to expansion
projects at the Hilton Hawaiian Village, Hilton Portland and Hilton Seattle. Net cash used in investing activities
decreased $89 million from $243 million in 2000 to $154 million in 2001 due to a lower level of hotel capital
expenditures in 2001 as well as greater proceeds from asset dispositions. 

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $403 million, $443 million and $467 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. The increase in cash used in each year reflects the repayment of long-term debt and revolving loans in
excess of additional long-term borrowings. For the three years ended December 31, 2002, total debt has been reduced
by approximately $1.25 billion.
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Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was 1.9x, 1.5x and 
1.8x, respectively. The decrease in 2001 is primarily the result of reduced earnings following the September 11th 
terrorist attacks.

Cash and equivalents totaled $54 million at December 31, 2002, an increase of $19 million from December 31, 2001.
We believe that our operating cash flow, available borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, and our ability to
obtain additional financing through various financial markets are sufficient to meet our liquidity needs. However, 
any projections of future financial needs and sources of working capital are subject to uncertainty. See “Results of
Operations” and “Forward-Looking Statements” for further discussion of conditions that could adversely affect our
estimates of future financial needs and sources of working capital.

Financing

We currently have two revolving credit facilities. In June 1998, we entered into a five-year $500 million revolving
credit facility to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Hilton Hawaiian Village. In 2001, we reduced the
commitment under the $500 million revolver to $425 million. As of December 31, 2002, approximately $375 million
of borrowings were outstanding under the $425 million revolver. Although the $425 million revolver expires in June
2003, we continue to classify the outstanding borrowings as long-term debt based on our ability and intent to
refinance the obligation. In November 1999, we entered into a $1.8 billion revolving credit facility consisting of a 
$1.4 billion revolver which expires in 2004 and a $400 million 364-day revolver. The 364-day revolver has been
extended through November 2003 and the commitment has been reduced to $150 million. In December 2002, we
reduced the commitment under the $1.4 billion revolver to $1.2 billion. As of December 31, 2002, $295 million 
of borrowings were outstanding under the $1.2 billion revolver. The 364-day revolver was undrawn at December 31,
2002. Total revolving debt capacity of approximately $960 million was available to us at December 31, 2002.

In October 1997, we filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission registering up
to $2.5 billion in debt or equity securities. In November 2002, we issued $375 million of 7.625% Senior Notes due
2012. The net proceeds from the issuance were used to pay down outstanding amounts under the 1999 revolving
credit facility. At December 31, 2002, available financing under the shelf totaled $825 million. The terms of any
additional securities offered under the shelf will be determined by market conditions at the time of issuance.

In connection with the spin-off in 1998 of our gaming business to a new corporation named Park Place
Entertainment Corporation, Park Place assumed and agreed to pay 100% of the amount of each payment required to
be made by us under the terms of the indentures governing our $300 million 7.375% Senior Notes due 2002 and our
$325 million 7% Senior Notes due 2004. Because these notes remain our legal obligation, they are included in our
2001 debt balance and a receivable from Park Place in an equal amount is included in our 2001 consolidated balance
sheet. The $300 million 7.375% Senior Notes, which were classified as current maturities of long-term debt with the
offsetting receivable classified in other current assets at December 31, 2001, were repaid as scheduled by Park Place
in June 2002. The $325 million 7% Senior Notes due 2004 remain in our 2002 debt balance and a receivable from
Park Place in an equal amount is included in our 2002 consolidated balance sheet. We remain obligated to make any
payment Park Place fails to make under these notes.

In November 2002, we entered into a derivative contract which swaps the fixed interest payments on our $375 million
7.95% Senior Notes due 2007 to a floating interest rate equal to the six-month London Interbank Offered Rate plus 
415 basis points. In connection with our $100 million 7.43% bonds due 2009 denominated in Chilean pesos, we have
a derivative contract which swaps the principal payment to a fixed U.S. dollar amount of $100 million with fixed
interest payments at 7.65% of that amount. We also have a derivative contract which swaps the floating rate mortgage
of one of our majority owned hotels, which had a principal balance of $36 million at December 31, 2002, to a fixed
interest rate. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 27% of our long-term debt (excluding the Park Place allocated
debt and including the impact of interest rate swaps) was floating rate debt.
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Provisions under various loan agreements require us to comply with certain covenants which include limiting the
amount of our outstanding indebtedness. Our revolving credit facilities contain two significant financial covenants: a
leverage ratio and a debt service coverage ratio. We are in compliance with our loan covenants as of December 31, 2002.

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002, including long-term
debt and operating lease commitments:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1 - 3 3 - 5 After
Contractual Obligations (in millions)       Total 1 year years years 5 years

Long-term debt $4,565 11 1,020 1,003 2,531

Operating leases 722 34 69 62 557

Total contractual obligations $5,287 45 1,089 1,065 3,088

Development Financing and Other Commercial Commitments

To assist prospective franchisees in obtaining financing for hotel projects, we have programs to provide alternative
capital sources to qualified franchisees. We have provided secondary financing to franchisees under a mezzanine
financing program. Loans outstanding under this program at December 31, 2002 totaled approximately $48 million.

Hilton Managers Acceptance Corp. (“HilMAC”), a third party lending entity, provides first mortgage construction
financing to franchisees for select Hilton Garden Inn, Homewood Suites by Hilton, Hampton and Embassy Suites
hotels. As of December 31, 2002, we guaranteed $38 million of loans outstanding under the HilMAC program. 
In addition to HilMAC, we have guaranteed $15 million of obligations of our franchisees.

As of December 31, 2002, in addition to the guarantees issued in connection with our development financing
programs, we have guaranteed $60 million of debt and other obligations of unconsolidated affiliates and third parties,
bringing our total guarantees to approximately $113 million. We also have commitments under letters of credit
totaling $61 million as of December 31, 2002. We believe it is unlikely that significant payments will be required
under these agreements.

The following table summarizes our development financing and other commercial commitments as of 
December 31, 2002:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Commercial Total Amounts Less than 1 - 3 3 - 5 After
Commitments (in millions) Committed 1 year years years 5 years

Letters of credit $ 61 61 — — —

Guarantees 113 41 14 36 22

Total commercial commitments $174 102 14 36 22

In addition, we remain a guarantor on 12 operating leases sold to WestCoast Hospitality Corporation as part of the 
Red Lion sale on December 31, 2001 (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources — Asset Dispositions”).  However, we 
have entered into an indemnification and reimbursement agreement with WestCoast, which requires WestCoast to
reimburse us for any costs and expenses incurred in connection with the guarantee. The minimum lease commitment
under these 12 operating leases totals approximately $5 million annually through 2020.

We have also provided performance guarantees to certain owners of hotels we operate under management contracts.
Most of these guarantees allow us to terminate the contract rather than fund shortfalls if specified performance levels
are not achieved. In limited cases, we are obligated to fund performance shortfalls.  At December 31, 2002, we have
two contracts containing performance guarantees with possible cash outlays totaling approximately $215 million
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through 2012. Funding under these performance guarantees was not significant in 2002. We anticipate that the future
operating performance levels of these hotels will be substantially achieved, therefore funding under these guarantees
is expected to be limited. In addition, we do not anticipate losing any significant management contracts in 2003.

Under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to provide additional guarantees or letters of credit totaling 
$76 million, including future construction loan guarantees of an unconsolidated joint venture totaling $43 million 
at December 31, 2002.

Asset Dispositions

During 2002, we entered into a $125 million facility with a wholly owned subsidiary of GE Capital for the sale of notes
receivable originated by our timeshare business. The sale of notes under the facility is non-recourse to us; however,
we have provided a limited deficiency guarantee (which would be triggered as a result of certain termination 
events) with a maximum liability equal to the greater of 5% of the purchaser’s unamortized investment basis in the
outstanding portfolio or 1.5% of the aggregate principal amount of notes sold. We also have an option, but not the
obligation, to repurchase defaulted notes from the purchaser. The facility allows for our participation in the future
cash flow of sold notes receivable once the purchaser has received 100% of the principal amount of the notes and a
preferred return. Under a separate agreement, we will continue to service the notes for a market-based fee calculated
on the outstanding balance of the notes receivable sold. In 2002, we completed two sales of notes receivable under the
facility, totaling approximately $119 million. These transactions resulted in a gain of approximately $5 million. Our
retained interest in notes receivable sold as of December 31, 2002 is approximately $4 million.

Also in 2002, we completed the sale of two owned, two leased and seven managed properties operating as Harrison
Conference Centers for approximately $49 million. We recorded a $16 million pre-tax book loss on the sale. However,
the sale generated a capital gain for tax purposes, which enabled us to utilize capital loss tax carryforwards generated
by the sale of the Red Lion hotel chain in 2001. These carryforwards were fully reserved through a valuation allowance
in prior periods. The valuation allowance was reduced when evidence indicated it was more likely than not that the
benefit would be realized, as was the case with the sale of these assets. The transaction, including the impact of the
reduction of the valuation allowance associated with the capital loss tax carryforwards and the reversal of book
deferred tax balances no longer required, resulted in a $16 million book tax benefit. Thus, on an after-tax basis, the
sale had no impact on reported net income.

The total pre-tax loss on asset dispositions of $14 million in 2002 represents the $11 million net loss on the
aforementioned asset sales and a loss of approximately $3 million primarily as a result of writing off the value
assigned to several long-term management and franchise agreements which were terminated during the year.
Proceeds from asset sales in 2002 were used to reduce outstanding debt.

On December 31, 2001, we sold the Red Lion hotel chain to WestCoast Hospitality Corporation through a sale of the
capital stock of Red Lion Hotels, Inc. The Red Lion portfolio consisted of 41 Red Lion hotels (eight owned, 11 leased
and 22 franchised) and two Doubletree hotels (one owned and one leased) with a total of approximately 6,500 rooms.
Total consideration of approximately $51 million included approximately $21 million of cash and approximately 
$30 million in redeemable preferred stock of WestCoast. The preferred stock is in two $15 million series, which pay
preferred dividends of 7% and 10% annually. The preferred stock is accounted for as a cost basis investment in our
consolidated financial statements.

Our total pre-tax loss on asset dispositions was $44 million in 2001, $42 million of which was attributable to the 
Red Lion sale. As the Red Lion sale also resulted in a large capital loss for tax purposes, we were able to carry back a
portion of this loss to offset capital gains recorded in prior years. The transaction, including the impact of the tax loss
carrybacks, resulted in a $47 million book tax benefit. Thus, on an after-tax basis, the sale of Red Lion Hotels, Inc.
capital stock resulted in a gain of approximately $5 million.

We will continue to review our portfolio of owned assets and may seek to sell certain non-strategic assets from 
time to time.
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Joint Ventures / Alliances 

We maintain investments in unconsolidated affiliates, including hotel joint ventures as well as other entities that
support the operations of our hotel properties. Investments are accounted for using the equity method when we
exercise significant influence over the venture but lack a controlling financial interest, which is determined based
upon the terms of individual joint venture agreements, including evaluation of rights held by other ownership
interests. Generally, we account for investments using the equity method when we own more than a minimal
investment but have no more than a 50% ownership interest. When we have a controlling financial interest in a
venture, which is generally when our ownership exceeds 50%, the balance sheet and results of operations are
consolidated, with net earnings reduced by the portion of earnings applicable to other ownership interests. All 
other investments in unconsolidated affiliates are generally accounted for under the cost method. We do not have
investments in unconsolidated special purpose entities and we have not entered into synthetic leasing arrangements.

Our investment in unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method totaled $291 million and 
$285 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, representing approximately three percent of total assets 
at the end of each period. At December 31, 2002, our unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method
had total assets of approximately $1.91 billion and total debt of approximately $1.01 billion. Of the $1.01 billion of total
debt, $971 million is secured solely by the affiliate’s assets or is guaranteed by other partners without recourse to us. 

Our joint venture investments at December 31, 2002 include 50% interests in Hilton HHonors Worldwide, which
operates the Hilton HHonors guest loyalty program, and Hilton Reservations Worldwide, which provides reservation
services. Pricing on these programs is determined on an annual basis to ensure that the fees charged to each hotel will
be sufficient to cover program costs with no element of profit. Both companies are joint ventures with Hilton Group
plc, whose wholly owned subsidiary, Hilton International Co., owns the rights to the Hilton brand name outside the
United States. These companies were formed as part of a 1997 agreement to reunify the Hilton brand worldwide
through a strategic alliance between Hilton and Hilton Group plc, which included cooperation on loyalty programs,
reservations and other operational matters.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we entered into a partnership agreement with CNL Hospitality Corp. to acquire seven
hotel properties. In the first phase of the transaction, the partnership acquired the 500-room Doubletree at Lincoln
Centre in Dallas, Texas and the 428-room Sheraton El Conquistador Resort and Country Club in Tucson, Arizona 
in December 2002. Both properties will operate under the Hilton brand. In February 2003, we contributed the 
437-room Hilton Rye Town in Rye Brook, New York and CNL contributed the 630-room Doubletree Crystal City 
in Arlington, Virginia to the partnership. The gain resulting from the contribution of the Hilton Rye Town will be
deferred and recognized over the life of the long-term management contract retained on the property.  Also in
February 2003, the partnership acquired the 257-suite Embassy Suites Santa Clara in Santa Clara, California, the 
267-suite Embassy Suites Crystal City in Arlington, Virginia, and the 174-suite Embassy Suites Orlando Airport 
in Orlando, Florida. We will operate all seven hotels under long-term management contracts and retain a minority
ownership interest in the partnership. In 2001, we entered into a separate partnership agreement with CNL in 
which we also retained a minority interest; that partnership owns four hotels that we operate under long-term
management contracts. 

As of December 31, 2002, we owned approximately 1.5 million shares of FelCor Lodging Trust Inc. common 
stock, representing approximately two percent of FelCor’s outstanding shares. FelCor owned or had an interest 
in 82 of our hotels as of December 31, 2002.

Stockholders’ Equity

Dividends paid on common shares were $.08 per share in 2000, 2001 and 2002.

Our Board of Directors has approved the repurchase of up to 20 million shares of our common stock pursuant to a
stock repurchase program. The timing of stock purchases are made at the discretion of management. There were 
no shares repurchased during 2000, 2001 or 2002 as we sought to improve our credit position by using excess cash 
flow to repay outstanding debt balances. As of December 31, 2002, 9.3 million shares remained authorized for
repurchase under this authority.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion presents an analysis of our results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2002.
We use EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expense and non-cash
items) as a supplemental measure of performance in the tables below and in the discussion of operating results
because we believe it gives the reader a more complete understanding of our operating results before the impact of
investing and financing transactions. Non-cash items, such as asset write-downs and impairment losses, are also
excluded from EBITDA, as these items do not impact operating results on a recurring basis. EBITDA and EBITDA
margins are among the more significant factors in management’s evaluation of company-wide and individual
property performance. EBITDA can be computed by adding depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expense,
interest and dividend income from investments related to operating activities and non-cash items to operating
income.

EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to any measure of operating results as promulgated under 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (such as operating income or net income), nor should 
it be considered as an indicator of our overall financial performance. EBITDA does not fully consider the impact of
investing or financing transactions as it specifically excludes depreciation and interest charges, which should also 
be considered in the overall evaluation of results. Additionally, our method of calculating EBITDA may be different
from the method used by other companies and therefore comparability may be limited.

Our operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar products or services: Hotel
Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Timeshare. Our results are significantly affected by occupancy and 
room rates achieved by hotels, our ability to manage costs, the relative mix of owned, leased, managed and franchised
hotels, the number and pricing of timeshare intervals sales and the change in the number of available hotel rooms
through acquisition, development and disposition.

Results are also impacted by, among other things: national and regional economic trends, including the magnitude
and duration of the current economic downturn in the United States; actual and threatened terrorist attacks and
international conflicts and their impact on domestic and international travel; capital market volatility; credit
availability; relationships with franchisees and property owners; and competition from other hotel brands. Future
operating results could also be adversely impacted by increased capacity. These conditions could negatively impact
hotel room demand and pricing which could limit our ability to pass through operating cost increases in the form of
higher room rates. Additionally, our ability to manage costs could be adversely impacted by significant increases in
energy, healthcare, insurance and other operating expenses, resulting in lower operating margins. Increases in
transportation and fuel costs or sustained recessionary periods in the U.S. (affecting domestic travel) and
internationally (affecting inbound travel from abroad) could also unfavorably impact future results.

Results in 2002 were adversely impacted by a slowly improving, but still fragile U.S. economy in the aftermath of the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, which impacted business travel and led to downward pressure on room rates.
Results in 2002 were also adversely impacted by a charge related to mold remediation in certain areas of the Hilton
Hawaiian Village. We anticipate that economic and political factors beyond our control will continue to create
challenges for the lodging industry and our company in 2003. Soft economic conditions and the uncertain world
political situation are expected to impact the recovery of independent business travel, placing continued pressure 
on room rates. Higher insurance costs and property taxes, coupled with this rate pressure, are expected to adversely
affect margins. In 2003, we will continue to focus on areas within our control, including managing our costs,
achieving revenue per available room (RevPAR) premiums in the markets where we operate, building occupancy,
adding new units to our family of brands, and delivering outstanding customer service. We believe that our focus 
on these core strategies, combined with our financial strength, diverse market presence, strong brands and 
well-maintained, strategically located properties, will enable us to remain competitive.



26 HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002

FISCAL 2002 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 2001

Overview 

A summary of our consolidated results for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 is as follows:

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2002 % Change

Summary of Results

Revenue $3,993 3,847 (4)%
Operating income 632 603 (5)
Net income 166 198 19

Net income per share:
Basic .45 .53 18

Diluted .45 .53 18

Other Operating Data

Reconciliation of EBITDA to Net Income:
EBITDA $1,072 990 (8)%

Pre-opening expense (3) (1)
Non-cash items (7) (2)
Operating interest and dividend income (15) (9)
Depreciation and amortization1 (415) (375)

Operating Income 632 603 (5)
Interest and dividend income 64 43

Interest expense (385) (328)
Interest expense, net, from unconsolidated affiliates (17) (19)
Net loss on asset dispositions (44) (14)
Provision for income taxes (77) (81)
Minority interest, net (7) (6)

Net Income $   166 198 19%

1

Includes proportionate share of unconsolidated affiliates.

Total revenue for 2002 was $3.847 billion, a decrease of $146 million or four percent from 2001. Total EBITDA 
was $990 million for 2002, an eight percent decrease from $1.072 billion in 2001. Our consolidated EBITDA 
margin (EBITDA as a percentage of revenue before other revenue from managed and franchised properties)
decreased .9 points to 34.2 percent in 2002 from 35.1 percent in 2001. Total operating income decreased 
$29 million to $603 million. 

Results in 2002 were adversely impacted by a soft U.S. economy, resulting in sluggish demand, primarily from 
independent business travelers. This reduced demand led to downward pressure on average daily room rates. 
Along with the effects of the soft economy, the impact of asset sales in 2002 and 2001 contributed to the decline 
in revenue, EBITDA and operating income. Results were also negatively impacted by a charge related to mold 
remediation in certain areas of the Hilton Hawaiian Village. Comparisons were also negatively impacted by 
increased healthcare and insurance costs, and the recognition of previously deferred revenue, EBITDA and 
operating income from our timeshare property at the Hilton Hawaiian Village in the first quarter of 2001. 

Results in 2002, however, benefited from strong cross-selling among the brands and the success of the Hilton
HHonors loyalty program which contributed to gains in market share across our family of brands. According to data
from Smith Travel Research, our Hilton, Hilton Garden Inn, Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Homewood Suites by Hilton
and Hampton brands all achieved growth in the system-wide RevPAR index, which represents the share of RevPAR
these properties attain versus their respective competitive sets. Results in 2002 also benefited from our cost
containment programs which resulted in solid margins in a challenging environment, strong sales at our timeshare
operations, a decline in average debt levels and interest rates, a lower effective tax rate and easy comparisons with
the latter half of 2001.



HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002 27

Our domestic owned and majority owned hotels generated $638 million of EBITDA in 2002, compared to $654 million
in the prior year. Operating income for these properties totaled $374 million, a decline of $45 million from 
$419 million in 2001. Results in 2002 were adversely impacted by the economic downturn in the United States
compared to 2001, resulting in comparative softness across many of our major brands. Reduced demand from
independent business travelers and overall price sensitivity were particularly prevalent in 2002. Occupancy 
increased compared to 2001, as the decrease in independent business traveler volume was offset by increases in
leisure and group room nights, however at lower average room rates. Markets in which our hotels achieved strong
results in 2002 included New York, Boston, Chicago and Washington, D.C., while the San Francisco and Phoenix
markets were soft compared to the prior year. The impact of property sales in 2002 and 2001 was partially offset by
the May 2002 acquisition of the Hilton Waikoloa Village. Owned hotel operating income was also negatively impacted
by mold remediation efforts at the Hilton Hawaiian Village, which resulted in a $17 million pre-tax charge and the
closure of the hotel’s Kalia Tower guest rooms in July 2002. The charge includes the estimated impairment loss for
certain fixed assets as well as estimates of investigatory and remediation costs based upon an evaluation of currently
available facts. We anticipate being able to re-open the Kalia Tower guest rooms in the third quarter of 2003.

RevPAR for comparable owned properties declined 2.6 percent for the year, with occupancy up 1.6 points to 71.1
percent and average daily rate down 4.8 percent to $148.41. As anticipated, RevPAR at this group of hotels showed
sequential quarterly improvement through the year. Compared with the respective 2001 quarters, RevPAR at
comparable owned hotels declined 15.3 percent and 6.1 percent, respectively, in the first and second quarters of
2002, and increased 1.2 percent and 13.2 percent, respectively, in the third and fourth quarters of 2002. Owned
property comparable EBITDA margins were essentially flat at 30.2 percent. Our margins have remained strong,
despite lower average daily room rates and increased healthcare and insurance costs, due primarily to our cost
containment initiatives. Cost containment, without compromising customer service and quality, will remain a top
priority in 2003.

Leased hotel revenue, EBITDA and operating income decreased $57 million, $6 million and $4 million, respectively,
compared to 2001, primarily due to the sale of the Red Lion hotel chain in 2001. Due to the relatively large size of the
lease payments required in a hotel operating lease, the leased properties operate at margins significantly lower than
our owned hotels.

Management and franchise fee revenue in 2002 decreased $13 million or 4 percent to $329 million. Fee revenue is
based primarily on rooms revenue at franchised properties and total operating revenue (and to a lesser extent gross
operating profits or cash flow) at managed properties. The decrease in fees reflects system-wide RevPAR declines
across most of our brands and a decline in incentive management fees, partially offset by new hotel openings. 
The decrease in RevPAR and incentive management fees reflects the comparative softness in the U.S. economy 
versus 2001.

The decrease in other fees and income in 2002 is primarily the result of lower timeshare revenue and lower earnings
from unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method compared to 2001. Timeshare results in 2002

were negatively impacted by a $4 million charge for remediation efforts related to mold found in certain areas of 
the Lagoon Tower timeshare development, the sale of receivables in June and November 2002, revisions to final
construction costs in Hawaii (also related to the mold situation), and start-up costs in New York. Results in 2002 were
also affected by the required percentage-of-completion method of accounting for our new projects in Las Vegas and
Orlando, and the required lease accounting for our new Hilton Club project in New York, which limited the amount 
of reported revenue, EBITDA and operating income growth. However, despite a comparatively soft economic
environment, interval sales continue to be strong and average sales prices increased compared to the prior year.
Timeshare results in 2001 benefited from the recognition of previously deferred amounts associated with our
timeshare project at the Hilton Hawaiian Village. This recognition increased revenue by $34 million and increased
both EBITDA and operating income by $14 million in 2001. Excluding the impact of sales deferrals in both periods,
intervals sales were approximately flat in 2002 compared with 2001, while the average sales price increased 22 percent.

Depreciation and amortization, including our proportionate share of depreciation and amortization from
unconsolidated affiliates, decreased $40 million in 2002 to $375 million. The decrease is primarily the result of
discontinuing amortization of goodwill and brand values effective January 1, 2002 in accordance with FAS 142 (see
“Other Matters – New Accounting Standards”). As required by FAS 142, the results for periods prior to its adoption
have not been restated. 
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Corporate Activity 

Corporate expense decreased $5 million in 2002 to $66 million. In 2002, we were repaid on a note receivable that we
had partially reserved in 2001. The 2002 corporate expense includes a benefit of approximately $4 million related to
this reversal of bad debt expense. The 2001 expense includes a $7 million bad debt expense related to certain notes
receivable (acquired in the 1999 purchase of Promus Hotel Corporation) that, as a result of the economic impact of the
events of September 11th, were unlikely to be collected. Excluding these non-recurring items, corporate expense
increased $6 million in 2002, primarily the result of increased legal costs.

Interest and dividend income decreased $21 million compared with the prior year. The decrease reflects the
repayment in June 2002 by Park Place of the $300 million 7.375% Senior Notes assumed by Park Place at the time 
of the spin-off of our gaming business (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Financing”). As these notes were
assumed by Park Place but remained our legal obligation prior to repayment, interest on the notes is reflected as both
interest income and interest expense in our consolidated financial statements. The decrease in interest income also
reflects lower notes receivable balances in 2002. Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, decreased $57 million
primarily due to lower outstanding debt balances and lower average interest rates, as well as the aforementioned
repayment by Park Place.

The total pre-tax loss on asset dispositions of $14 million in 2002 represents an $11 million net loss on asset sales
(see “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Asset Dispositions”) and a loss of approximately $3 million primarily as a
result of writing off the value assigned to several long-term management and franchise agreements which were
terminated during the year. We realized a pre-tax loss on asset dispositions of $44 million in 2001, primarily due 
to the sale of the Red Lion hotel chain.

The effective income tax rate for 2002 decreased to 28.4% from 30.8% in 2001. The tax rate in 2002 reflects a
reduction in the valuation allowance associated with capital loss tax carryforwards and the reversal of book deferred
tax balances no longer required resulting from asset sales. The 2002 tax rate also reflects the impact of a reduction 
in our valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards due to higher than expected utilization of these
carryforwards on our 2001 Federal tax return filed in September 2002, as well as discontinuing goodwill amortization
effective January 1, 2002, which was not deductible for tax purposes. Excluding the impact on the provision for
income taxes of asset sales and the third quarter carryforward utilization, the effective tax rate for 2002 was 37.3%.
The effective tax rate in 2001, excluding asset sales, was 42.5%. Our effective tax rate is determined by the level and
composition of pre-tax income and the mix of income subject to varying foreign, state and local taxes.

Hotel Statistics 

RevPAR for U.S. owned-or-operated hotels and for our hotels system-wide for the year ended December 31, 2002

is as follows:

Change Change
U.S. owned-or-operated hotels1

2002 vs.2001 System-wide2  

2002 vs. 2001

Hilton $106.32 (2.2)% Hilton $86.61 (2.6)%
Doubletree 69.71 (5.7) Hilton Garden Inn 64.07 (1.1)
Embassy Suites 85.58 (5.0) Doubletree 66.76 (5.5)
Other 61.34 (2.3) Embassy Suites 83.18 (3.0)
Total 87.43 (3.7) Homewood Suites by Hilton 68.53 (2.2)

Hampton 51.66                              .4

Other 76.49 (7.6)

1

Statistics are for comparable U.S. hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31, 2002 and owned or operated by us since January 1, 2001.

2

Statistics are for comparable hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31, 2002 and owned, operated or franchised by us since January 1, 2001.
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FISCAL 2001 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 2000

Overview 

A summary of our consolidated results for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 is as follows:

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2000 2001 % Change

Summary of Results

Revenue $4,396 3,993 (9)%
Operating income 830 632 (24)
Net income 272 166 (39)
Net income per share:

Basic .74 .45 (39)
Diluted .73 .45 (38)

Other Operating Data

Reconciliation of EBITDA to Net Income:
EBITDA $1,271 1,072 (16)%

Pre-opening expense (4) (3)
Non-cash items — (7)
Operating interest and dividend income (32) (15)
Depreciation and amortization1 (405) (415)

Operating Income 830 632 (24)
Interest and dividend income 86 64

Interest expense (453) (385)
Interest expense, net, from unconsolidated affiliates (16) (17)
Net gain (loss) on asset dispositions 32 (44)
Provision for income taxes (200) (77)
Minority interest, net (7) (7)

Net Income $  272 166 (39)%

1

Includes proportionate share of unconsolidated affiliates.

Total revenue for 2001 was $3.993 billion, a decrease of $403 million from 2000. Total EBITDA was $1.072 billion for
2001, a 16 percent decrease from $1.271 billion in 2000. Our total company EBITDA margin decreased 1.7 points to
35.1 percent in 2001 from 36.8 percent in 2000. Total operating income decreased $198 million to $632 million. 

The 2001 results were negatively impacted by a drop in U.S. lodging demand beginning in the second quarter, as well
as severe declines in RevPAR and margins at most of our owned hotels in urban markets in the weeks following the
September 11th terrorist attacks. Along with the effects of the slowing U.S. economy and the September 11th terrorist
attacks, the impact of 2000 and 2001 property sales (primarily the sale of 52 leases and four management contracts 
to RFS Hotel Investors, Inc., the CNL transaction and the sale of several Homewood Suites by Hilton properties) 
contributed to the full year decline in revenue, EBITDA and operating income. Results for 2001 benefited from
increased cross-selling among the brands, the positive impact of the Hilton HHonors loyalty program, and other sales
and marketing initiatives which contributed to gains in market share. Our Hilton, Hilton Garden Inn, Doubletree,
Embassy Suites, Homewood Suites by Hilton and Hampton brands all achieved growth in the system-wide RevPAR
index compared to 2000. Results in 2001 also benefited from our cost containment programs, strong timeshare 
sales, the recognition of previously deferred revenue from our timeshare operations and a decline in debt levels 
and interest rates.

Our domestic owned and majority owned hotels contributed $654 million of EBITDA in 2001, compared to $858 million
in the prior year. Operating income for these properties totaled $419 million, a decline of $206 million from 
$625 million in 2000. Although the majority of the EBITDA and operating income declines can be attributed to the
aftermath of the September 11th terrorist attacks, growth for the year was also impacted by comparative softness in
the New York, Chicago and San Francisco markets prior to September 11th. The market softness reflected lower
attendance at group meetings and decreased transient business due to a slowing U.S. economy, and was magnified
when compared to the record-breaking results achieved in 2000. Comparisons to 2000 were also negatively impacted
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by owned property sales, primarily several Homewood Suites by Hilton properties and ongoing renovation projects at
the Hilton New Orleans Riverside and the Hilton San Francisco. RevPAR for comparable owned properties declined
13.6 percent for the year, with occupancy down 6.1 points to 69.4 percent and average daily rate down 6.0 percent to
$153.78. Owned property comparable EBITDA margins declined 4.8 points to 30.4 percent. Margins were severely
impacted by the immediate decline in business following September 11th and group meeting and convention
cancellations resulting in a significant decrease in high-margin food and beverage revenue.

The margin decrease was partially mitigated by the implementation of cost containment programs at each of our
properties. These initiatives, which included a company-wide limitation on new hires, direct energy purchase
agreements combined with reduced energy consumption as well as many hotel-level programs to improve operating
efficiencies, were implemented late in the first quarter of 2001. We also reduced hours and adjusted staffing levels 
as necessary at our hotels to reflect the reduction in demand. However, we kept our core staff in place and did not
mandate company-wide layoffs.

Leased hotel revenue, EBITDA and operating income decreased $230 million, $17 million and $14 million,
respectively, compared to 2000, primarily as a result of the termination of the RFS leases in January 2001.

Management and franchise fee revenue in 2001 decreased $8 million or two percent to $342 million. The decrease in
fees reflected a decline in business volume as a result of the September 11th terrorist attacks, partially offset by new
hotel openings. As many of our franchised properties are located in “drive-to” markets, the events of September 11th
had less of an impact on those properties than it did on our owned hotels located in destinations more dependent on
air travel. The decrease in fees was also partially offset by the expansion in April 2000 of the Hilton HHonors guest
loyalty program to include the Hampton, Doubletree, Embassy Suites and Homewood Suites by Hilton brands, as well
as our cross-selling and other initiatives.

Our timeshare segment posted strong results despite the slowing U.S. economy and the September 11th terrorist
attacks. Interval sales at our timeshare properties increased 33 percent over 2000. We also began to recognize revenue
and expenses from our timeshare property at the Hilton Hawaiian Village in the first quarter of 2001. In addition, we
also recognized previously deferred revenue and expenses associated with this project in the first quarter of 2001. The
increase in other fees and income and other operating expenses compared to 2000 is primarily the result of strong
sales at our timeshare properties. The recognition of deferred amounts from the Hawaiian project impacted revenue
by $34 million and both EBITDA and operating income by $14 million.

Depreciation and amortization, including our proportionate share of depreciation and amortization from
unconsolidated affiliates, increased $10 million in 2001 to $415 million due primarily to additional depreciation 
at recently renovated and expanded properties.

Corporate Activity

Corporate expense increased $9 million in 2001 to $71 million. The 2001 expense includes a $7 million bad debt
expense related to certain notes receivable (acquired in the Promus purchase) that, as a result of the economic impact
of the events of September 11th, were unlikely to be collected. The 2000 expense included an $8 million benefit from
the termination of our post-retirement life insurance programs as part of the integration of the Hilton and Promus
employee benefit plans. Excluding these non-recurring items, corporate expense decreased $6 million in 2001,
reflecting cost control measures implemented at the corporate and regional offices.

Interest and dividend income decreased $22 million compared with the prior year, primarily due to repayments on
notes receivable which were outstanding for most of 2000. Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, decreased
$68 million reflecting lower outstanding debt balances and lower average interest rates.

We realized a pre-tax loss on asset dispositions of $44 million in 2001, primarily due to the sale of the Red Lion hotel
chain, compared to a pre-tax gain of $32 million in 2000 from the sale of marketable securities.

The effective income tax rate for 2001 decreased to 30.8% from 41.8% in 2000. Excluding the impact of the Red Lion
sale, the effective tax rate for 2001 increased to 42.5%.
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Hotel Statistics 

RevPAR for U.S. owned-or-operated hotels and for our hotels system-wide for the year ended December 31, 2001

is as follows:

Change Change
U.S. owned-or-operated hotels1

2001 vs. 2000 System-wide
2

2001 vs. 2000

Hilton $108.99 (13.1)% Hilton $88.48 (10.3)%
Doubletree 73.35 (8.1) Hilton Garden Inn 65.72 (2.5)
Embassy Suites 90.12 (8.9) Doubletree 69.99 (7.3)
Other 61.80 (6.2) Embassy Suites                 86.31 (7.7)
Total 89.73 (10.5) Homewood Suites by Hilton 70.14 (3.0)

Hampton 51.46 1.3

Other 69.63 (12.6)

1

Statistics are for comparable U.S. hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31, 2001 and owned or operated by us since January 1, 2000.

2

Statistics are for comparable hotels, and include only hotels in the system as of December 31, 2001 and owned, operated or franchised by us since
January 1, 2000.

OTHER MATTERS

New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted FAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The rules require that
goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for 
impairment. We expect to receive future benefits from previously acquired goodwill and brands over an indefinite
period of time and therefore no longer amortize them. Our impairment reviews of goodwill and brands did not 
result in an impairment charge in 2002. As required by FAS 142, the results for the periods prior to its adoption 
have not been restated.

In response to a Financial Accounting Standards Board staff announcement, and in accordance with the FASB’s
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 
‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred,” effective January 1, 2002 we changed our method of reporting reimbursable
costs incurred on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees. Under the new method, we report
reimbursements received from managed properties and franchisees as revenue and the costs incurred on their 
behalf  as expenses. These costs, which relate primarily to payroll costs at managed properties where we are the
employer, are reflected in other revenue and expenses from managed and franchised properties in the consolidated
statements of income. Revenue and expenses for the 2000 and 2001 periods have been reclassified to conform with
the presentation in the 2002 financial statements. Since the reimbursements are made based upon the costs incurred
with no added margin, the adoption of this guidance has no effect on our operating income, total or per share net
income, cash flow or financial position.

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted FAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
The adoption of FAS 144 had no impact on our financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 requires that
guarantees issued after December 31, 2002 are recorded as liabilities at fair value, with the offsetting entry recorded
based on the circumstances in which the guarantee was issued. Adoption of FIN 45 will have no impact on our
historical financial statements as existing guarantees are not subject to the measurement provisions of FIN 45. The
impact on future financial statements will depend on the nature and extent of guarantees issued, but is not expected 
to have a material impact on us.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and
Disclosure – an amendment of FAS 123.” This statement provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. This statement also amends the
disclosure requirements of FAS 123 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” to
require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for
stock-based compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We have adopted the disclosure
provisions of FAS 148, which require expanded disclosure regarding stock-based compensation in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies footnote to the consolidated financial statements. The expanded disclosure will be
required in our quarterly financial reports beginning in the first quarter of 2003. 

Other

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary course of our business. Management believes the resolution of pending
lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements in this report, including without limitation, those set forth under the captions
“Development and Capital Spending,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “Results of Operations” and “Other
Matters,” and statements relating to our plans, strategies, objectives, expectations, intentions and adequacy of
resources are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

The words “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates” and similar expressions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to
future events and financial performance, and are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those identified 
above under “Results of Operations” and those in our Annual Report of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002 under the captions “Operations” and “Additional Information,” as well as:

■ the effects of regional, national and international economic conditions, including the magnitude and duration of the
current economic downturn in the United States; 

■ the effects of actual and threatened terrorist attacks and international conflicts and their impact on domestic and
international travel, including the potentially marked decrease in travel that could occur if military action is taken in
Iraq or elsewhere; 

■ supply and demand changes for hotel rooms and timeshare intervals; 

■ competitive conditions in the lodging and timeshare industries and increases in room and timeshare capacity; 

■ our ability to maintain positive relationships with franchisees and property owners and our ability to obtain new
management contracts and franchise agreements; 

■ increases in energy, healthcare, insurance, transportation and fuel costs and other expenses, including costs 
related to mold remediation; 

■ our ability to obtain adequate property and liability insurance to protect against losses or to obtain insurance at
reasonable rates;

■ the effect that internet reservation channels may have on the rates that we are able to charge for hotel rooms;

■ the financial condition of the airline industry and its impact on air travel;

■ the impact of government regulations, including land use, health, safety and environmental laws; 

■ our ability to recover loans and other advances from property owners and franchisees;

■ the costs of litigation; and 

■ capital market volatility and the availability of capital to finance growth.

Any of these risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those
anticipated. Although we believe the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are based upon
reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained and caution you not to place
undue reliance on such statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements to reflect current or future events or circumstances.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share amounts) 2000 2001 2002 

Revenue

Owned hotels $2,429 2,122 2,100 

Leased hotels 398 168 111 

Management and franchise fees 350 342 329 

Other fees and income 274 418 355 

3,451 3,050 2,895 

Other revenue from managed and franchised properties 945 943 952 

4,396 3,993 3,847 

Expenses

Owned hotels 1,571 1,468 1,462 

Leased hotels 365 152 101 

Depreciation and amortization 382 391 348 

Impairment loss and related costs — — 21 

Other operating expenses 241 336 294 

Corporate expense, net 62 71 66 

2,621 2,418 2,292 

Other expenses from managed and franchised properties 945 943 952 

3,566 3,361 3,244 

Operating Income 830 632 603 

Interest and dividend income 86 64 43 

Interest expense (453) (385) (328)
Interest expense, net, from unconsolidated affiliates (16) (17) (19)
Net gain (loss) on asset dispositions 32 (44) (14)

Income Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest 479 250 285 

Provision for income taxes (200) (77) (81)
Minority interest, net (7) (7) (6)

Net Income $ 272 166 198

Basic Earnings Per Share $ .74 .45 .53

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ .73 .45 .53

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
(in millions) 2001 2002 

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and equivalents $      35 54 

Accounts receivable, net 291 294 

Inventories 148 139 

Deferred income taxes 61 61 

Current portion of notes receivable, net 40 16 

Current portion of long-term receivable 300 — 

Other current assets 121 66 

Total current assets 996 630 

Investments, Property and Other Assets

Investments and notes receivable, net 580 490 

Long-term receivable 325 325

Property and equipment, net 3,911 3,971

Management and franchise contracts, net 487 429 

Leases, net 122 118 

Brands 971 970 

Goodwill 1,273 1,273 

Other assets 120 142 

Total investments, property and other assets 7,789 7,718 

Total Assets $8,785 8,348 

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $    533 560 

Current maturities of long-term debt 365 11 

Income taxes payable 4 4 

Total current liabilities 902 575 

Long-term debt 4,950 4,554 

Deferred income taxes 871 825 

Insurance reserves and other 279 341 

Total liabilities 7,002 6,295 

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock, 369 million and 376 million shares outstanding, respectively 948 962 

Additional paid-in capital 873 950 

Retained earnings 168 322 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5) (11)
1,984 2,223 

Less treasury stock, at cost (201) (170)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,783 2,053 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $8,785 8,348 

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Year ended December 31,
(in millions) 2000 2001 2002

Operating Activities

Net income $  272 166 198 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 382 391 348 

Amortization of loan costs 8 10 9 

Net (gain) loss on asset dispositions (32) 44 14 

Impairment loss and related costs — — 21   

Change in working capital components:
Inventories (26) (19) 13 

Accounts receivable (6) 111 12 

Other current assets (18) (32) 55 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (48) (48) 26 

Income taxes payable — (1) — 
Change in deferred income taxes 13 (41) (39) 
Change in other liabilities 30 — (22)
Unconsolidated affiliates’ distributions in excess of earnings 40 19 19 

Other (26) (15) 21 

Net cash provided by operating activities 589 585 675

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures (458) (370) (245)
Additional investments (140) (139) (174)
Proceeds from asset dispositions 165 230 174 

Payments on notes and other 190 125 127 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (71)

Net cash used in investing activities (243) (154) (189)

Financing Activities

Change in commercial paper borrowings and revolving loans (918) (1,387) (550)
Long-term borrowings 655 992 373 

Reduction of long-term debt (115) (24) (278)
Issuance of common stock 4 6 18 

Cash dividends (29) (30) (30)

Net cash used in financing activities (403) (443) (467)

(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Equivalents (57) (12) 19

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year 104 47 35 

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year $    47 35 54 

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Retained Other

Common Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive Treasury
(in millions, except per share amounts) Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balance at December 31, 1999 $946 853 (197) 24 (211) 1,415 

Net Income — — 272 — — 272 

Other comprehensive income:
Cumulative translation adjustment

net of deferred tax — — — (1) —            (1)
Change in unrealized gain / loss on  

marketable securities, net of deferred tax — — — (17) —               (17)
Comprehensive income (loss) for 2000 — — 272 (18) — 254

Issuance of common stock 1 2 — — — 3 

Exercise of stock options — — (3) — 4 1 

Deferred compensation — 6 — — — 6 

Common dividends ($.08 per share) — — (29) — —            (29)
Adjustment to spin-off of Park Place 

Entertainment Corporation — — (8) —                —                     (8)

Balance at December 31, 2000 947 861 35 6 (207) 1,642 

Net Income — — 166 — — 166 

Other comprehensive income:
Cash flow hedge adjustment, 

net of deferred tax — — — (2) —                  (2)
Change in unrealized gain / loss on 

marketable securities, net of deferred tax — — — (9) —                   (9)
Comprehensive income (loss) for 2001 — — 166 (11) — 155

Issuance of common stock 1 2 — — — 3 

Exercise of stock options — — (3) — 6 3 

Deferred compensation — 10 — — — 10 

Common dividends ($.08 per share) — — (30) —                   —               (30)

Balance at December 31, 2001 948 873 168 (5) (201) 1,783

Net Income — — 198 — — 198 

Other comprehensive income:
Cash flow hedge adjustment, 

net of deferred tax — — — (3)                   —                  (3)
Cumulative translation adjustment, 

net of deferred tax — — — 1 — 1 

Change in unrealized gain / loss on 
marketable securities, net of deferred tax — — — (4)                  —                 (4)

Comprehensive income (loss) for 2002 — — 198 (6) — 192

Issuance of common stock 14 70 — — 1 85 

Exercise of stock options — — (14) — 30 16 

Deferred compensation — 7 — — — 7 

Common dividends ($.08 per share) — — (30) —                    —                 (30)

Balance at December 31, 2002 $962 950 322 (11) (170) 2,053 

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2002

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ORGANIZATION

Hilton Hotels Corporation is engaged in the ownership, management and development of hotels, resorts and
timeshare properties and the franchising of lodging properties. We operate in select markets throughout the world,
predominately in the United States. Revenue and income are derived from three reportable segments: Hotel
Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Timeshare.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hilton Hotels Corporation, our wholly owned
subsidiaries and entities in which we have a controlling financial interest. The determination of controlling financial
interest is based upon the terms of individual joint venture agreements, including evaluation of rights held by other
ownership interests. Entities in which we have a controlling financial interest are generally comprised of majority
owned joint ventures. All material intercompany transactions are eliminated and net earnings are reduced by the
portion of earnings of affiliates applicable to other ownership interests.

Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include investments with initial maturities of three months or less. Cash and equivalents
includes cash related to certain consolidated hotels, the use of which is restricted for hotel purposes under the terms
of collateralized borrowings, totaling approximately $19 million and $34 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reflected net of allowance for uncollectable accounts of $16 million and $17 million as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Investments

We maintain investments in unconsolidated affiliates, including hotel joint ventures as well as other entities that
support the operations of our hotel properties. Investments are accounted for using the equity method when we
exercise significant influence over the venture but lack a controlling financial interest, which is determined based
upon the terms of individual joint venture agreements, including evaluation of rights held by other ownership
interests. Generally, we account for investments using the equity method when we own more than a minimal
investment but have no more than a 50% ownership interest. When we have a controlling financial interest in the
venture, which is generally when our ownership exceeds 50%, the balance sheet and results of operations are
consolidated, with net earnings reduced by the portion of earnings applicable to other ownership interests. All 
other investments in unconsolidated affiliates are generally accounted for under the cost method.

Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in most foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange
rates and related gains and losses, net of applicable deferred income taxes, are reflected in stockholders’ equity.
Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in earnings.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of our long-lived assets are reviewed when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If it is determined that an impairment loss has occurred based 
on the lowest level of identifiable expected future cash flow, then a loss is recognized in the income statement using 
a fair value based model.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Interest incurred during construction 
of facilities is capitalized and depreciated over the life of the asset. Costs of improvements are capitalized. These
capitalized costs may include structural costs, equipment, fixtures and floor and wall coverings. Costs of normal
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the asset life or lease term. The service lives of assets are 
generally 40 years for buildings and three to eight years for building improvements and furniture and equipment.

Management and Franchise Contracts

Management and franchise contracts acquired in acquisitions that were accounted for as purchases are recorded at
the estimated present value of net cash flow expected to be received over the lives of the contracts. This value is
amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining contract lives. Costs incurred to acquire individual
management and franchise contracts are amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the respective 
contract. Accumulated amortization of management and franchise contracts totaled $105 million and $143 million 
at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Leases

Leases acquired in acquisitions that were accounted for as purchases are recorded at the estimated present value 
of net cash flow expected to be received over the lives of the lease agreements. This value is amortized using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms. Accumulated amortization of leases totaled $7 million and 
$11 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Brands

The brand names of hotels acquired in acquisitions are assigned a fair market value. To arrive at a value for each
brand name, an estimation is made of the amount of royalty income that could be generated from the brand name if 
it was licensed to an independent third-party owner. The resulting cash flow is discounted back using the estimated
weighted average cost of capital for each respective brand name. Effective January 1, 2002, we account for brands in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 142, which requires that intangible assets with
indefinite lives are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for impairment. Prior to January 1, 2002, brand values
were amortized using the straight-line method over 40 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. We
account for goodwill in accordance with FAS 142, which requires that goodwill is not amortized, but is reviewed 
annually for impairment. Prior to January 1, 2002, goodwill was amortized using the straight-line method over 
40 years.

Derivative Instruments

We have an outstanding swap agreement which qualifies for hedge accounting as a cash flow hedge of a foreign
currency denominated liability. The gain or loss on the change in fair value of the derivative is included in earnings to
the extent it offsets the earnings impact of changes in fair value of the hedged obligation. Any difference is deferred
in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of stockholders’ equity.

We have an interest rate swap on certain fixed rate senior notes which qualifies as a fair value hedge. This derivative
impacts earnings to the extent of increasing or decreasing actual interest expense on the hedged notes to simulate 
a floating interest rate. Changes in the fair value of the derivative are offset by an adjustment to the value of the 
hedged notes.
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We also have an interest rate swap on the floating rate mortgage of a consolidated joint venture which qualifies as a
cash flow hedge. This derivative impacts earnings to the extent of increasing or decreasing actual interest expense on
the hedged mortgage to simulate a fixed interest rate, with any incremental fair value change deferred in accumulated
other comprehensive income.

There were no amounts recognized or reclassified into earnings for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 or 
2002 due to hedge ineffectiveness or due to excluding from the assessment of effectiveness any component of the
derivatives. We assess on a quarterly basis the effectiveness of our hedges in offsetting the variability in the cash 
flow or fair values of the hedged obligations.

Unamortized Loan Costs

Debt discount and issuance costs incurred in connection with the placement of long-term debt are capitalized and
amortized to interest expense over the lives of the related debt. These balances are included in other assets in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Self-Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of general liability, workers’ compensation and employee medical and dental
insurance coverage. Insurance reserves include the present values of projected settlements for known and incurred,
but not reported claims.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is generally recognized as services are performed. Owned and leased hotel revenue represents primarily
room rentals and food and beverage sales from owned, majority owned and leased hotels.

Management fees represent fees earned from hotels managed by us, usually under long-term contracts with the hotel
owner. Management fees include a base fee, which is generally a percentage of hotel revenue, and an incentive fee,
which is generally based on the hotel’s profitability. We recognize base fees as revenue when earned in accordance
with the terms of the contract. In interim periods we recognize incentive fees that would be due if the contract were
terminated at the end of the interim period.

Franchise fees represent fees received in connection with the franchise of our brand names, usually under long-term
contracts with the hotel owner. Depending on the brand, we charge franchise royalty fees of up to five percent of
rooms revenue. We recognize fee revenue as earned, in accordance with FAS 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee
Revenue.”

Other fees and income primarily consist of earnings from timeshare operations and equity income from
unconsolidated affiliates. Timeshare revenue is generated primarily from the sale and financing of timeshare
intervals and operating timeshare resorts. We recognize revenue from deeded timeshare sales in accordance with 
FAS 66, “Accounting for Real Estate Sales.” Sales are included in revenue when a minimum of a 10 percent down
payment has been received and certain minimum sales thresholds have been attained. During periods of
construction, profits from timeshare sales are recognized under the percentage-of-completion method. Our Hilton
Club timeshare product is accounted for as a long-term lease with a reversionary interest rather than the sale of a
deeded interest in real estate. Hilton Club sales revenue is recognized over the term of the lease.

We incur certain reimbursable costs on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees. We report reimbursements
received from managed properties and franchisees as revenue and the costs incurred on their behalf as expenses.
These costs, which relate primarily to payroll costs at managed properties where we are the employer, are reflected 
in other revenue and expenses from managed and franchised properties in the consolidated statements of income.
Since the reimbursements are made based upon the costs incurred with no added margin, the presentation of 
these reimbursable costs has no effect on our operating income, total or per share net income, cash flow or
financial position.
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Hilton HHonors

Hilton HHonors is a guest loyalty program operated by Hilton HHonors Worldwide (HHW), a joint venture 50%
owned by us and 50% owned by Hilton Group plc. Hilton Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hilton International Co.,
owns the rights to the Hilton brand name outside the United States. The HHonors program is operated for the benefit
of the Hilton family of brands worldwide.

Members of the HHonors program earn points based on their spending at most of the hotel properties operated and
franchised by us and Hilton Group. HHW accumulates and tracks points on the member’s behalf and fulfills the
awards upon request. Points can be redeemed for hotel stays at participating properties, and for a variety of other
awards such as airline tickets, cruises and car rentals. As we exercise significant influence over the operation of 
HHW but lack a controlling financial interest, our investment in HHW is accounted for under the equity method.

HHonors is provided as a guest loyalty program to participating hotels. HHW charges the cost of operating the
program, including the estimated fair value of award redemption, to participating hotels based on members’
qualifying expenditures. The charges do not include a markup or profit element. We record our share of program
costs, which we expense and pay to HHW based upon contractual amounts when qualified members stay at our 
hotels. When members redeem awards at our hotels, we receive contractual amounts from HHW.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for 2000,
2001 and 2002 were 368 million, 369 million and 374 million, respectively. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted. The dilutive 
effect of the assumed exercise of stock options and convertible securities increased the weighted average number 
of common shares by 24 million, 25 million and 27 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. In addition, 
the increase to net income resulting from interest on convertible securities assumed to have not been paid was
approximately $15 million per year in 2000 and 2001, and $16 million in 2002.

Stock-Based Compensation

We apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accounting for our stock-based
compensation plans. No compensation cost is reflected in net income related to our stock option plans for the
periods presented, as all options had an exercise price greater than or equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. Had the expense for our stock-based compensation plans been determined using
the fair value based method defined in FAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” our net income and 
net income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2000 2001 2002

Net income
As reported $272 166 198

Incremental compensation expense 17 16 20

As adjusted $255 150 178

Basic earnings per share
As reported $ .74 .45 .53

As adjusted $ .69 .41 .48

Diluted earnings per share
As reported $ .73 .45 .53

As adjusted $ .69 .41 .48
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively: dividend 
yield of one percent for each of the three years; expected volatility of 40, 48 and 34 percent; risk-free interest rates 
of 6.0, 5.2 and 4.6 percent and expected lives of seven years for 2000, six years for 2001 and five years for 2002.

We also provide supplemental retirement benefits to eligible senior officers in the form of fixed stock units that settle
for shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis. The compensation expense associated with the benefits is
expensed over a four year vesting period. The aggregate expense under these plans totaled $6 million, $8 million and
$7 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from our estimates and assumptions.

New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2002 we adopted FAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The rules require that
goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for
impairment. We expect to receive future benefits from previously acquired goodwill and brands over an indefinite
period of time and therefore no longer amortize them. Our impairment reviews of goodwill and brands did not 
result in an impairment charge in 2002. As required by FAS 142, the results for the periods prior to its adoption 
have not been restated. The reconciliations of previously reported net income and earnings per share to the amounts
adjusted for the exclusion of goodwill and brand amortization net of the related tax effect for the three years ended
December 31 are as follows:

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2000 2001 2002

Net income
As reported $ 272 166 198

Goodwill and brand amortization, net of tax 49 49 —

As adjusted $ 321 215 198

Basic earnings per share
As reported $ .74 .45 .53

As adjusted $ .87 .58 .53

Diluted earnings per share
As reported $ .73 .45 .53

As adjusted $ .86 .57 .53

In response to a Financial Accounting Standards Board staff annoucement, and in accordance with the FASB’s
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 
‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred,” effective January 1, 2002 we changed our method of reporting reimbursable
costs incurred on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees. Under the new method, we report 
reimbursements received from managed properties and franchisees as revenue and the costs incurred on their
behalf as expenses. These costs, which relate primarily to payroll costs at managed properties where we are the
employer, are reflected in other revenue and expenses from managed and franchised properties in the consolidated
statements of income. Revenue and expenses for the 2000 and 2001 periods have been reclassified to conform with
the presentation in the 2002 financial statements. These reimbursements totaled $945 million, $943 million and
$952 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Since the reimbursements are made based upon the costs
incurred with no added margin, the adoption of this guidance has no effect on our operating income, total or
per share net income, cash flow or financial position.
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Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted FAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
The adoption of FAS 144 had no impact on our financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 requires that
guarantees issued after December 31, 2002 are recorded as liabilities at fair value, with the offsetting entry recorded
based on the circumstances in which the guarantee was issued. Adoption of FIN 45 will have no impact on our
historical financial statements as existing guarantees are not subject to the measurement provisions of FIN 45. The
impact on future financial statements will depend on the nature and extent of guarantees issued, but is not expected
to have a material impact on us.

In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and
Disclosure – an amendment of FAS 123.” This statement provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. This statement also amends the
disclosure requirements of FAS 123 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” 
to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting 
for stock-based compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We have adopted the disclosure
provisions of FAS 148, which require expanded disclosure regarding stock-based compensation in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies footnote to the consolidated financial statements. The expanded disclosure will be
required in our quarterly financial reports beginning in the first quarter of 2003.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisition of the Hilton Waikoloa Village

In May 2002, we purchased our partner’s interest in the 1,240-room Hilton Waikoloa Village on Hawaii’s Big Island, 
a property we manage and in which we previously had an ownership interest of approximately 13%. We acquired 
the remaining 87% interest for approximately $155 million, consisting of $75 million in cash and 5.2 million shares
of our common stock. The shares have been registered for resale with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Asset Dispositions

During 2002, we entered into a $125 million facility with a wholly owned subsidiary of GE Capital for the sale of notes
receivable originated by our timeshare business. The sale of notes under the facility is non-recourse to us; however,
we have provided a limited deficiency guarantee (which would be triggered as a result of certain termination 
events) with a maximum liability equal to the greater of 5% of the purchaser’s unamortized investment basis in the
outstanding portfolio or 1.5% of the aggregate principal amount of notes sold. We also have an option, but not the
obligation, to repurchase defaulted notes from the purchaser. The facility allows for our participation in the future
cash flow of sold notes receivable once the purchaser has received 100% of the principal amount of the notes and a
preferred return. Under a separate agreement, we will continue to service the notes for a market-based fee calculated
on the outstanding balance of the notes receivable sold. In 2002, we completed two sales of notes receivable under the
facility, totaling approximately $119 million. These transactions resulted in a gain of approximately $5 million, which
is included in the net gain (loss) on asset dispositions  in our consolidated statements of income. Our retained
interest in notes receivable sold as of December 31, 2002 is approximately $4 million.

Also in 2002, we completed the sale of two owned, two leased and seven managed properties operating as Harrison
Conference Centers for approximately $49 million. We recorded a $16 million pre-tax book loss on the sale. However,
the sale generated a capital gain for tax purposes, which enabled us to utilize capital loss tax carryforwards generated by
the sale of the Red Lion hotel chain in 2001. These carryforwards were fully reserved through a  valuation allowance in
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prior periods. The valuation allowance was reduced when evidence indicated it was more likely than not that the
benefit would be realized, as was the case with the sale of these assets. The transaction, including the impact of the
reduction of the valuation allowance associated with the capital loss tax carryforwards and the reversal of book
deferred tax balances no longer required, resulted in a $16 million book tax benefit. Thus, on an after-tax basis, 
the sale had no impact on reported net income.

The total pre-tax loss on asset dispositions of $14 million in 2002 represents the $11 million net loss on the
aforementioned asset sales and a loss of approximately $3 million primarily as a result of writing off the value
assigned to several long-term management and franchise agreements which were terminated during  the year.
Proceeds from asset sales in 2002 were used to reduce outstanding debt.

On December 31, 2001, we sold the Red Lion hotel chain to WestCoast Hospitality Corporation through a sale of the
capital stock of Red Lion Hotels, Inc. The Red Lion portfolio consisted of 41 Red Lion hotels (eight owned, 11 leased
and 22 franchised) and two Doubletree hotels (one owned and one leased) with a total of approximately 6,500 rooms.
Total consideration of approximately $51 million included approximately $21 million of cash and approximately 
$30 million in redeemable preferred stock of WestCoast. The preferred stock is in two $15 million series, which pay
preferred dividends of 7% and 10% annually. The preferred stock is accounted for as a cost basis investment in our
consolidated financial statements.

Our total pre-tax loss on asset dispositions was $44 million in 2001, $42 million of which was attributable to the 
Red Lion sale. As the Red Lion sale also resulted in a large capital loss for tax purposes, we were able to carry back a
portion of this loss to offset capital gains recorded in prior years. The transaction, including the impact of the tax loss
carrybacks, resulted in a $47 million book tax benefit. Thus, on an after-tax basis, the sale of Red Lion Hotels, Inc.
capital stock resulted in a gain of approximately $5 million.

We realized a pre-tax gain on asset dispositions of $32 million in 2000 from the sale of marketable securities.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS AND RELATED COSTS

Results in 2002 include a charge of $21 million for mold remediation in certain areas of the Hilton Hawaiian Village.
The charge includes approximately $17 million for remediation efforts at the property’s Kalia Tower, which is
included in our Hotel Ownership segment, and approximately $4 million for remediation efforts at the Lagoon 
Tower timeshare development. The charge includes an estimated impairment loss for certain fixed assets as well as
estimates of investigatory and remediation costs based upon an evaluation of currently available facts. These costs do
not include the capital expenditures required to refurnish the Kalia Tower guest rooms and make improvements to
the Kalia and Lagoon Towers, which will be capitalized and depreciated over the useful life of the assets. Actual costs
incurred in future periods may vary from our estimates.

The Lagoon Tower remains in operation. The Kalia Tower guest rooms, which were closed in July 2002, are expected 
to re-open in the third quarter of 2003.

We are pursuing coverage under our property insurance policy, including coverage for any remediation costs and for
business interruption. To date, the insurance carriers have not taken a position as to whether insurance coverage is
available. The charge incurred does not include the impact of such potential recoveries.

INVENTORIES

Included in inventories at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are unsold intervals at our vacation ownership properties 
of $132 million and $124 million, respectively. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net 
realizable value.
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INVESTMENTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Investments and notes receivable at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Equity investments
Hotels $259 255

Other 32 30

Timeshare notes receivable, with an average rate of 15.0%, due 2003 to 2012 177 96

Other notes receivable, with an average rate of 7.8%, due 2003 to 2015 88 73

Marketable securities 29 21

Other investments 35 31

620 506

Less current portion of notes receivable (40) (16)
Total $580 490

Notes receivable are reflected net of allowances for uncollectable amounts of $17 million and $8 million as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Our investments in unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method totaled $291 million and 
$285 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, representing approximately three percent of total assets 
at the end of each period. At December 31, 2002, our unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method
had total assets of approximately $1.91 billion and total debt of approximately $1.01 billion. Of the $1.01 billion of total
debt, $971 million is secured solely by the affiliate’s assets or is guaranteed by other partners without recourse to us.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Land $ 568 561

Buildings and leasehold improvements 3,474 3,698

Furniture and equipment 876 929

Property held for sale or development 43 40

Construction in progress 104 61

5,065 5,289

Less accumulated depreciation (1,154) (1,318)
Total $  3,911 3,971 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Accounts and notes payable $129 108

Accrued compensation and benefits 125 151

Deposits 19 17

Accrued property tax 33 29

Accrued interest 49 37

Other accrued expenses 178 218

Total $533 560
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LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31, 2001 and 2002 is as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Industrial development revenue bonds at adjustable rates, due 2015 $      82 82

Senior notes, with an average rate of 7.3%, due 2007 to 2031
1

1,935 2,050

7% Senior notes, due 2004
2

625 325

Mortgage notes, 6.0% to 8.6%, due 2006 to 2022
1

357 353

7.95% Collateralized borrowings, due 2010 493 486

Chilean inflation-indexed note, effective rate of 7.65%, due 2009
1

105 100

5% Convertible subordinated notes due 2006 496 497

Revolving loans 1,220 670

Other 2 2

5,315 4,565

Less current maturities (365) (11)
Net long-term debt $4,950 4,554

1

Interest rates include the impact of interest rate swaps.

2

Represents balances assumed by Park Place in connection with the December 31, 1998 spin-off of our gaming business.

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized, was $402 million, $324 million and $291 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. Capitalized interest totaled $9 million, $10 million and $5 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Debt maturities are as follows:

(in millions)

2003 $ 11

2004 1,007

2005 13

2006 547

2007 456

Thereafter 2,531

Total $4,565

We currently have two revolving credit facilities. In June 1998, we entered into a five-year $500 million revolving
credit facility to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Hilton Hawaiian Village. In 2001, we reduced the
commitment under the $500 million revolver to $425 million. As of December 31, 2002, approximately $375 million
of borrowings were outstanding under the $425 million revolver, which bears interest at the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) plus a spread based on our public debt rating or a leverage ratio. The all-in borrowing cost under this
facility was approximately LIBOR plus 87.5 basis points as of December 31, 2002. Although the $425 million revolver
expires in June 2003, we continue to classify the outstanding borrowings as long-term debt based on our ability and
intent to refinance the obligation. In November 1999, we entered into a $1.8 billion revolving credit facility consisting
of a $1.4 billion revolver which expires in 2004 and a $400 million 364-day revolver. The 364-day revolver has been
extended through November 2003 and the commitment has been reduced to $150 million. In December 2002, we
reduced the commitment under the $1.4 billion revolver to $1.2 billion. As of December 31, 2002, $295 million of
borrowings were outstanding under the $1.2 billion revolver. The 364-day revolver was undrawn at December 31, 2002.
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Borrowings under this facility bear interest at LIBOR plus a spread based on our public debt rating or leverage ratio.
The all-in borrowing cost under this facility was approximately LIBOR plus 135 basis points at December 31, 2002. Total
revolving debt capacity of approximately $960 million was available to us at December 31, 2002.

In October 1997, we filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission registering up 
to $2.5 billion in debt or equity securities. In November 2002, we issued $375 million of 7.625% Senior Notes due
2012. The net proceeds from the issuance were used to pay down outstanding amounts under the 1999 revolving 
credit facility. At December 31, 2002, available financing under the shelf totaled $825 million. The terms of any 
additional securities offered under the shelf will be determined by market conditions at the time of issuance.

In connection with the spin-off in 1998 of our gaming business to a new corporation named Park Place
Entertainment Corporation, Park Place assumed and agreed to pay 100% of the amount of each payment required to 
be made by us under the terms of the indentures governing our $300 million 7.375% Senior Notes due 2002 and our
$325 million 7% Senior Notes due 2004. Because these notes remain our legal obligation, they are included in our 
2001 debt balance and a receivable from Park Place in an equal amount is included in our 2001 consolidated balance
sheet. The $300 million 7.375% Senior Notes, which were classified as current maturities of long-term debt with the
offsetting receivable classified in other current assets at December 31, 2001, were repaid as scheduled by Park Place
in June 2002. The $325 million 7% Senior Notes due 2004 remain in our 2002 debt balance and a receivable from 
Park Place in an equal amount is included in our 2002 consolidated balance sheet. We remain obligated to make any
payment Park Place fails to make under these notes.

Our 5% convertible subordinated notes due 2006 are convertible at any time into our common stock at a conversion
price of $22.17 per share. However, the market price of our common stock was substantially below the conversion
price as of December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, we entered into a derivative contract which swaps the fixed interest payments on our $375 million
7.95% Senior Notes due 2007 to a floating interest rate equal to six-month LIBOR plus 415 basis points. In connection
with our $100 million 7.43% bonds due 2009 denominated in Chilean pesos, we have a derivative contract which
swaps the principal payment to a fixed U.S. dollar amount of $100 million with fixed interest payments at 7.65% 
of that amount. We also have a derivative contract which swaps the floating rate mortgage of one of our majority 
owned hotels, which had a principal balance of $36 million at December 31, 2002, to a fixed interest rate. As of
December 31, 2002, approximately 27% of our long-term debt (excluding the Park Place allocated debt and including
the impact of interest rate swaps) was floating rate debt.

Provisions under various loan agreements require us to comply with certain covenants which include limiting 
the amount of outstanding indebtedness. Our revolving credit facilities contain two significant financial covenants: 
a leverage ratio and a debt service coverage ratio. We are in compliance with our loan covenants as of 
December 31, 2002.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of our financial instruments at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

2001 2002

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Amount Value Amount Value

Cash and equivalents and long-term marketable securities $       64 64 75 75

Timeshare notes receivable (including current portion) 177 184 96 100

Other notes receivable (including current portion) 88 89 73 74

Long-term debt (including current maturities) (5,315) (5,196) (4,565) (4,571)
Derivative instruments (2) (2) (2) (2)

Cash Equivalents and Long-Term Marketable Securities

The fair value of cash equivalents and long-term marketable securities is estimated based on the quoted market 
price of the investments.

Timeshare and Other Notes Receivable

The estimated fair value of timeshare and other notes receivable is based on recent market prices or the expected
future cash flows discounted at risk adjusted rates.

Long-Term Debt

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on
the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities.

Derivative Instruments

The fair value of derivative instruments is based on the present value of estimated future cash flow, including the 
use of foreign currency forward exchange rates, as appropriate.

INCOME TAXES

The provisions for income taxes for the three years ended December 31 are as follows:

(in millions) 2000 2001 2002

Current
Federal $169 83 129

State, foreign and local 33 34 20

202 117 149

Deferred (2) (40) (68)
Total $200 77 81

During 2000, 2001 and 2002, we paid income taxes of $138 million, $150 million and $58 million, respectively, net 
of refunds received.
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The income tax effects of temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting that gave rise to deferred
income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Deferred tax assets
Compensation $   88 88

Deferred income 30 15

Insurance 34 34

Business combination expense 5 1

Foreign taxes 2 —

Franchise system funds 4 13

Reserves 7 3

NOL carryforwards, expiring 2005 to 2008 2 1

Capital loss carryforward, expiring 2006 47 47

219 202

Valuation allowance (51) (52)
168 150

Deferred tax liabilities
Basis difference (243) (213)
Property (213) (224)
Investments (123) (84)
Brand value (390) (390)
Other (9) (3)

(978) (914)
Net deferred tax liability $(810) (764)

The reconciliations of the Federal income tax rate to our effective tax rate for the three years ended 
December 31 are as follows:

2000 2001 2002

Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0 35.0

Increase (reduction) in taxes
State and local income taxes, net of Federal tax benefits 4.2 3.9 1.5

Foreign taxes, net 2.3 3.1 2.0

Goodwill 2.4 4.7 —

Federal income tax credits (2.7) (4.4) (2.9)
Disposition of Red Lion Hotels, Inc. stock — (13.4) —
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance — — (8.4)
Other .6 1.9 1.2

Effective tax rate 41.8% 30.8 28.4
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Our tax provision, deferred taxes and effective rate in 2002 were impacted by asset sales, which generated capital 
gains for tax purposes, enabling us to utilize capital loss tax carryforwards generated by the Red Lion sale in 2001. 
The reduction of the valuation allowance for capital loss tax carryforwards and the reversal of book deferred tax
balances no longer required resulted in a reduction of the tax provision and effective rate in 2002. Also in 2002, 
our tax provision, deferred taxes and effective rate were impacted by higher than expected utilization of capital loss 
tax carryforwards on our 2001 Federal tax return. This reduction in the valuation allowance for capital loss tax
carryforwards also resulted in a reduction of the tax provision and effective rate for 2002. Excluding the impact 
of asset sales and the impact of the higher utilization of capital loss tax carryforwards on our 2002 Federal tax return,
our effective rate in 2002 was 37.3%. 

Capital loss tax carryforwards available to offset future capital gains are recorded as deferred tax assets and are fully
reserved until evidence indicates it is more likely than not that the benefit will be realized. The deferred tax assets
related to capital loss tax carryforwards are fully reserved at December 31, 2002.

Our tax provision, deferred taxes and effective rate in 2001 were impacted by the sale of the Red Lion Hotels, Inc.
capital stock on December 31, 2001. The sale resulted in a large capital loss for tax purposes. A portion of the capital
loss was carried back to offset capital gains recorded in prior years, resulting in a reduction of the tax provision and
effective tax rate in 2001. Excluding the impact of the Red Lion sale, our effective tax rate in 2001 was 42.5%.

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Five hundred million shares of common stock with a par value of $2.50 per share are authorized, of which 379 million
and 384 million were issued at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, including treasury shares of ten million 
in 2001 and eight million in 2002. We have 25 million shares of preferred stock with a par value of $1.00 per share
authorized for issuance. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2002.

To reflect the spin-off of Park Place, the book value of net assets of our discontinued gaming operations as of
December 31, 1998 was charged against our retained earnings and additional paid-in capital. During 2000, spin-off
adjustments totaling $8 million were recorded through retained earnings.

Our Board of Directors has approved our repurchase of up to 20 million shares of our common stock pursuant to a
stock repurchase program. The timing of stock purchases are made at the discretion of management. There were no
shares repurchased during 2000, 2001 or 2002. As of December 31, 2002, 9.3 million shares remained authorized for
repurchase under this authority.

We have a Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan under which a right is attached to each share of our common stock.
The rights may only become exercisable under certain circumstances involving actual or potential acquisitions of 
20% or more of our common stock by certain people or groups. Depending on the circumstances, if the rights
become exercisable, the holder may be entitled to purchase units of our junior participating preferred stock, 
shares of our common stock or shares of common stock of the acquiror. The rights remain in existence until
November 2009 unless they are terminated, exercised or redeemed.

STOCK PLANS

At December 31, 2002, 55 million shares of common stock were reserved for the exercise of options under our stock
incentive plans. Options may be granted to salaried officers, directors and other key employees to purchase our 
common stock at not less than the fair market value at the date of grant. Generally, options may be exercised in
installments commencing one year after the date of grant. The stock incentive plans also permit the granting of 
Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs). No SARs have been granted as of December 31, 2002.
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A summary of the status of our stock option plans as of December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, and changes during 
the years ending on those dates, is presented below:

Options Price Range Weighted Average Options Available
(per share) Price (per share) Outstanding for Grant

Balance at December 31, 1999 $  4.68 – 27.53 $15.22 22,757,742 10,082,198

Authorized — 25,000,000

Granted 6.66 – 15.28 9.20 7,765,000 (7,765,000)
Exercised 4.68 – 10.48 5.29 (207,400) —
Cancelled 7.78 – 20.66 14.92 (2,032,325) 1,738,259

Balance at December 31, 2000 4.68 – 27.53 13.66 28,283,017 29,055,457

Granted 10.64 – 12.22 12.20 5,986,300 (5,986,300)
Exercised 4.68 – 11.08 9.52 (335,206) —
Cancelled 6.66 – 20.56 13.66 (1,402,975) 1,218,437

Balance at December 31, 2001 6.66 – 27.53 13.44 32,531,136 24,287,594

Granted 11.85 – 13.95 11.86 7,469,400 (7,469,400)
Exercised 6.66 – 14.84 9.86 (1,455,096) —
Cancelled 6.66 – 20.66 12.40 (1,654,675) 1,624,900

Balance at December 31, 2002 $  6.66 – 27.53 $13.33 36,890,765 18,443,094

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average  
Number    Remaining    Weighted Average Number Weighted Average

Exercise Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$   6.66 – 10.00 5,352,800 6.8 $  9.16 2,479,650 $  9.16

10.48 – 11.85 8,162,068 8.3 11.74 920,118 10.95

11.88 – 13.14 10,930,425 5.0 12.03 7,168,575 11.94

13.63 – 27.53 12,445,472 5.4 17.31 9,929,952 15.38

$   6.66 – 27.53 36,890,765 6.1 $13.33 20,498,295 $13.22

We also have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan by which we are authorized to issue up to two million shares of
common stock to our full-time employees. Under the terms of the Plan, employees can elect to have a percentage of
their earnings withheld to purchase our common stock. Effective January 1, 2003, the Employee Stock Purchase Plan
has been suspended indefinitely.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We have various employee investment plans whereby we contribute certain percentages of employee contributions.
The aggregate expense under these plans totaled $10 million per year in 2000 and 2001 and $11 million in 2002.

Certain employees are covered by union sponsored, collectively bargained multi-employer pension plans. We
contributed and charged to expense $14 million in 2000 and $18 million per  year in both 2001 and 2002 for such
plans. Information from the plans’ administrators is not sufficient to permit us to determine our share, if any, of
unfunded vested benefits.

In addition, many of our non-union employees are covered by a noncontributory retirement plan (Basic Plan). We
also have plans covering qualifying employees and non-officer directors (Supplemental Plans). Benefits for all plans
are based upon years of service and compensation, as defined. Since December 31, 1996, employees and non-officer
directors have not accrued additional benefits under either the Basic or Supplemental Plans. Plan assets will be used
to pay benefits due employees for service through this date. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, these plans have
assets of $249 million and $253 million, respectively, and a projected benefit obligation of $248 million and 
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$257 million, respectively. Accrued pension cost totaled $14 million and $11 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. Pension expense under the Basic and Supplemental Plans for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001

and 2002 was not significant.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

We terminated our post-retirement life insurance programs effective December 31, 2000. As a result, we recorded 
an $8 million benefit in the fourth quarter of 2000. The annual cost of these benefits provided prior to termination 
of the programs was not significant.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our operations consist of three reportable segments which are based on similar products or services: Hotel
Ownership, Managing and Franchising, and Timeshare. The Hotel Ownership segment derives revenue primarily
from owned, majority owned and leased hotel properties and equity earnings from unconsolidated affiliates
(primarily hotel joint ventures). The Managing and Franchising segment provides services including hotel
management and licensing of our family of brands to franchisees. This segment generates its revenue from fees
charged to hotel owners. The Timeshare segment consists of multi-unit timeshare resorts. This segment produces 
its results from the sale and financing of timeshare intervals and operating timeshare resorts. Segment results are
presented net of consolidating eliminations for fee based services at the operating income level, without allocating
corporate expenses, which is the basis used by management to evaluate segment performance.

Segment results for the three years ended December 31 are as follows:

(in millions) 2000 2001 2002

Revenue
Hotel Ownership $2,930 2,388 2,270

Managing and Franchising 1,295 1,285 1,281

Timeshare 171 320 296

Total revenue $4,396 3,993 3,847

Operating Income 
Hotel Ownership $    716 470 412

Managing and Franchising 302 290 278

Timeshare 30 86 73

Corporate and other unallocated expenses (218) (214) (160)
Total operating income $ 830 632 603

Segment assets as of December 31 are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2002

Assets 
Hotel Ownership $4,542 5,278

Managing and Franchising 668 2,114

Timeshare 333 257

Corporate and other 3,242 699

Total assets $8,785 8,348

At December 31, 2002, the Hotel Ownership segment includes goodwill and brand values totaling $617 million and
$98 million, respectively, and the Managing and Franchising segment includes goodwill and brand values totaling
$656 million and $872 million, respectively. Prior to the adoption of FAS 142 in 2002, goodwill and brands were not
allocated among the segments.
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LEASES

We lease hotel properties and land under operating leases. As of December 31, 2002, we leased seven hotels. Our
hotel leases require the payment of rent equal to the greater of a minimum rent or percentage rent based on a
percentage of revenue or income, and expire through December 2020, with varying renewal options. Our land leases
represent ground leases for certain owned hotels and, in addition to minimum rental payments, may require the
payment of additional rents based on varying percentages of revenue or income. Total rent expense incurred under
our leases was $144 million, $57 million and $55 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, which included
minimum rent payments of $67 million, $36 million and $37 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. 
Minimum lease commitments under noncancelable operating leases total approximately $34 million in 2003, 
$35 million in 2004, $34 million in 2005, $32 million in 2006 and $30 million in 2007, with an aggregate
commitment of $722 million through 2065.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We have established franchise financing programs with third party lenders to support the growth of our Hilton
Garden Inn, Homewood Suites by Hilton, Hampton and Embassy Suites hotels. As of December 31, 2002, we have
provided guarantees of $53 million on loans outstanding under the programs. In addition, we have guaranteed 
$60 million of debt and other obligations of unconsolidated affiliates and third parties, bringing our total guarantees
to approximately $113 million. Our outstanding guarantees have terms of one to ten years. We also have commitments
under letters of credit totaling $61 million as of December 31, 2002. We believe it is unlikely that material payments
will be required under these agreements.

In addition, we remain a guarantor on 12 operating leases sold to WestCoast Hospitality Corporation as part of 
the Red Lion sale on December 31, 2001. However, we have entered into an indemnification and reimbursement
agreement with WestCoast, which requires WestCoast to reimburse us for any costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the guarantee. The minimum lease commitment under these 12 operating leases totals 
approximately $5 million annually through 2020.

We have also provided performance guarantees to certain owners of hotels we operate under management contracts.
Most of these guarantees allow us to terminate the contract rather than fund shortfalls if specified performance levels
are not achieved. In limited cases, we are obligated to fund performance shortfalls. At December 31, 2002, we have
two contracts containing performance guarantees with possible cash outlays totaling approximately $215 million
through 2012. Funding under these performance guarantees was not significant in 2002. We anticipate that the future
operating performance levels of these hotels will be substantially achieved, therefore funding under these guarantees
is expected to be limited. In addition, we do not anticipate losing any significant management contracts in 2003.

Our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2002 do not include any liabilities for potential obligations
under our outstanding guarantees. Under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to provide additional
guarantees or letters of credit totaling $76 million, including future construction loan guarantees of an
unconsolidated joint venture totaling $43 million at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, we had contractual commitments of approximately $51 million for construction and
renovation projects at certain owned and majority owned properties.

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary course of our business. Management believes the resolution of pending
lawsuits will not  have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.



HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002 53

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hilton Hotels Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hilton Hotels Corporation, a Delaware corporation,
and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2001 and for the two years then
ended were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations and whose report dated January 29, 2002 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those statements before the revisions described in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies – New Accounting Standards” note to the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Hilton Hotels Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flow for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2001, and for the 
two-year period then ended were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. These financial statements
have been revised to include the following:

■ As described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – New Accounting Standards” note to the 
consolidated financial statements, these financial statements have been revised to gross-up revenue and expenses
for reimbursable costs incurred on behalf of managed hotel properties and franchisees in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-14. We audited the adjustments described in the aforementioned
footnote that were applied to revise the 2001 and 2000 statements of operations. In our opinion, such adjustments
are appropriate and have been properly applied. 

■ As described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – New Accounting Standards” note to the 
consolidated financial statements, the notes to the financial statements have been revised to include the 
transitional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets,” which was adopted by the Company as of January 1, 2002. Our audit procedures with
respect to the disclosures in the aforementioned footnote with respect to 2001 and 2000 included (a) agreeing the
previously reported net income to the previously issued financial statements and the adjustments to reported net
income representing amortization expense (including any related tax effects) recognized in those periods related 
to goodwill and intangible assets that are no longer being amortized to the Company’s underlying records
obtained from management, and (b) testing the mathematical accuracy of the reconciliation of adjusted net
income to reported net income, and the related earnings-per-share amounts. In our opinion, the disclosures for
2001 and 2000 are appropriate.

However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2001 or 2000 financial statements of
the Company other than with respect to such revisions and disclosures and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or any other form of assurance on the 2001 or 2000 financial statements taken as a whole.

Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
January 27, 2003
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PREDECESSOR AUDITOR’S REPORT

THIS REPORT IS A COPY OF THE REPORT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP. THIS REPORT HAS NOT

BEEN REISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP, NOR HAS ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP PROVIDED ITS CONSENT TO THE

INCLUSION OF THEIR REPORT IN OUR FORM 10-K.

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hilton Hotels Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hilton Hotels Corporation (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flow for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Hilton Hotels Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2001 and the results of their
operations and their cash flow for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP
Los Angeles, California
January 29, 2002
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

Quarterly Financial Data

(in millions, except per share amounts)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total

2002

Revenue $    921 1,035 934 957 3,847

Operating income 137 203 127 136 603

Net income 34 76 48 40 198

Basic EPS $ .09 .20 .13 .11 .53

Diluted EPS $ .09 .20 .13 .11 .53

2001

Revenue $1,070 1,094 942 887 3,993

Operating income 188 238 127 79 632

Net income 55 86 21 4 166

Basic EPS $    .15 .23 .06 .01 .45

Diluted EPS $    .15 .23 .06 .01 .45

As of December 31, 2002 there were approximately 16,000 stockholders of record.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

General Information
Year ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002

Reconciliation of EBITDA to operating income (in millions):

EBITDA1 $1,271 1,072 990

Depreciation and amortization2 (405) (415) (375)
Pre-opening expense (4) (3) (1)
Non-cash items — (7) (2)
Operating interest and dividend income (32) (15) (9)

Operating income $ 830 632 603

Year ended December 31, 2002 Occupancy Average Rate RevPAR

Comparable System-Wide Statistical Information3

Hilton 68.1% $127.16 $86.61

Change from prior year .7 pts (3.5)% (2.6)%

Hilton Garden Inn 66.1% $96.87 $64.07

Change from prior year 2.1 pts (4.3)% (1.1)%

Doubletree 66.1% $101.01 $66.76

Change from prior year (.5) pts (4.8)% (5.5)%

Embassy Suites 69.3% $120.00 $83.18

Change from prior year 1.3 pts (4.9)% (3.0)%

Homewood Suites by Hilton 72.7% $94.30 $68.53

Change from prior year 1.8 pts (4.6)% (2.2)%

Hampton 67.1% $77.01 $51.66

Change from prior year .4 pts (.3)% .4%

Other 61.3% $124.87 $76.49

Change from prior year 1.6 pts (10.0)% (7.6)%

1

We use EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expense and non-cash items) as a supplemental measure of

performance because we believe it gives the reader a more complete understanding of our operating results before the impact of investing and financing

transactions. Non-cash items, such as asset write-downs and impairment losses, are also excluded from EBITDA, as these items do not impact operating

results on a recurring basis. EBITDA and EBITDA margins are among the more significant factors in management’s evaluation of company-wide and

individual property performance. EBITDA can be computed by adding depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expense, interest and dividend income from

investments related to operating activities and non-cash items to operating income. 

EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to any measure of operating results as promulgated under accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States (such as operating income or net income), nor should it be considered as an indicator of our overall financial performance. EBITDA does not

fully consider the impact of investing or financing transactions as it specifically excludes depreciation and interest charges, which should also be considered

in the overall evaluation of results. Additionally, our method of calculating EBITDA may be different from the method used by other companies and therefore

comparability may be limited.

2

Includes proportionate share of unconsolidated affiliates.

3

Statistics are for comparable hotels, and include only those hotels in the system as of December 31, 2002 and owned, operated or franchised by us since
January 1, 2001.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)   
Year ended December 31, 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Operating Data

Revenue $1,907 2,343 4,396 3,993 3,847

Income

Income from continuing operations $    188 176 272 166 198

Discontinued gaming operations 109 — — — —
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (2) — — —

Net income $    297 174 272 166 198

Basic Earnings Per Share  

Income from continuing operations $     .71 .66 .74 .45 .53

Discontinued gaming operations .44 — — — —
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (.01) — — —

Net income $ 1.15 .65 .74 .45 .53

Diluted Earnings Per Share  

Income from continuing operations $ .71 .66 .73 .45 .53

Discontinued gaming operations .41 — — — —
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (.01) — — —

Net income $ 1.12 .65 .73 .45 .53

Cash Dividends Per Common Share $ .32 .08 .08 .08 .08

Other Information

Number of Properties at Year End

Owned1

32 85 78 65 63

Leased — 74 73 9 7

Joint venture 5 56 61 65 65

Managed 24 185 191 210 201

Franchised 188 1,352 1,492 1,612 1,721

Timeshare 20 27 25 25 27

Total 269 1,779 1,920 1,986 2,084

Available Rooms at Year End

Owned1

23,341 36,367 35,234 33,536 34,664

Leased — 12,681 12,602 2,836 2,650

Joint venture 2,421 16,171 18,148 19,604 19,093

Managed 14,690 51,979 51,122 53,776 52,004

Franchised 46,562 183,081 200,717 214,824 225,588

Timeshare 1,359 2,924 2,815 2,911 3,117

Total 88,373 303,203 320,638 327,487 337,116

1

Includes majority owned and controlled hotels.
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The following trademarks used herein are owned by Hilton Hospitality, Inc.: Doubletree®, Doubletree Club

Hotel®, Doubletree Guest Suites®, Embassy Suites Hotels®, Embassy Vacation Resort®, Hampton®, Hampton
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